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STRATEGIC REPORT

Our vision

To be leaders in our chosen professional
services giving outstanding advice and
transactional support to enable clients to
protect, enhance and realise the value of
their assets, businesses and investments
throughout the economic cycle.




Financial highlights

REVENUE

£70.5m

(2019: £60.1m)

ADJUSTED PROFIT
BEFORE TAX'

£9.2m

(2019: £7.0m)

ADJUSTED BASIC EP5?

5.7P
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Far more on who we are and what we do:

www.begbies-traynorgroup.com/investor-relations
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STRATEGIC REPORT

At a glance

Begbies Traynor Group plc is a leading business recovery,
financial advisory and property services consultancy.

Our services

sle

(S

Corporate and
personal insolvency

We handle the largest number
of corporate appointments
in the UK, principally
serving the mig-market
and smaller companies.

Valuations

Valuatton of property,
businesses, machinery and
business assets.

Our businesses

-~ .
Q Begbies Traynor

Eddisons CR@

OFT

Corporate finance

Buy and sell side suppart
on corporate transactions,

Vi

Transactional services

Sate of property, machinery and
other business assets through
ghysical and online auctions;
business sales agency;
commercial property agency
focussed on northern and
eastern England.

@ BTG Advisory

BARKER STOREY
MATTHEWS

Part of Eddisens.

@ Beghies Traynor Group ple Annual report and accounts 2020

Financial advisory

Business and financia!
restructuring, debt advisory,
forensic accounting and
investigations, due diligence
and transactional support.

Property consultancy,
planning and
management

Building consultancy, commercial

property management, specialist

insurance and vacant property

risk management, transport
planning and design.

# Springboard

Corporate Finance
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Why invest?

Strong track record of cash-generative,

Comprehensive profitable growth with a weli-established

progressive dividend policy
network AlM listed since 2004:

of locations across the UK . . .
+ highly experienced board and senior

management team

. long-established corporate structure

@ with separation of equity, management
and fee earners
740 Strongly positioned in counter-cyclical
activities, representing 70% of total
staff and partners eP 8 /b

revenue

Market-leading business recovery

practice taking the largest number of

corporate inselvency appointments in
CAGR in adjusted EP5 the UK, with a focus on mid-market and

Of 160/0 smaller companies

,ﬁ i last fi Strong referral network across the group
AV 4 in last five years leading to high levels of repeat business

Diverse income streams provide multiple
sources of growth across the economic
cycle in fragmented markets

* QOrganic growth strategy camplemented
Pl.‘OfESSlOl‘lal Staff by vatue-accretive acquisitions across
our service lines, enabled by a strong

include: :
balance sheet

« licensed insolvency
practitioners

\’; .
accountants "
chartered |
surveyors

fawyers
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chairman’s statement

Ric Traynor

Executive chairman

Introduction

I am pleased to report a year of strong financial performance
with growth in revenue and earnings. This refiects the benefit of
investment in both organic development and acquisitions in line
with our group strategy.

Following the introduction of the COVID-19 lockdown restrictions in
the final six weeks of our financial year, the majonity of the group was
able to conunue te provide advice and support to our clients by
successiully working rernately, albeit a minority of our service lines
within property advisory and transactional services were disrupted

Our business recovery and financial advisory activities performed
well in the year, with an increase in our market share in insolvency
to 10% {by volume), a strong performance from our advisory team,
and contributions from current and prior year acquisitions.

Cur preperty advisory and transactional service teams delivered a
solid financial performance for the year with profits in line with last
year, having absorbed the impact of the COVID lockdown, reflecting
the breadth of services and expertise in the division. The investrments
in recent years leave the division well placed as commercial activities
resume following the easing of lockdown restrictions.

The group has continued to generate strong cash flows in the year,
which together with funds raised from a share placing in July 2019,
has enabled the group to reduce its net debt, complete three
acquisitions, and propose increasing the dividend for the year

14

I am pleased to report a year of
strong financial performance”

Beghies Traynor Group plc Annual repart and accounts 2020

Overall, the group 1s in a very strong position with an increase in our
scale and capabilites and a breadth of service lines which generate
good margins and are highly cash generative We have a strong
balance sheet with a substantial reduction in leverage in the year
and significant headroom in our committed bank facilities, providing
resources for organic and acquisitive investment in the group.

The increased scale of the group's activities with a focus on
counter-cyclical services and our strong financial position leaves
the group well placed to continue our track reccerd of revenue and
profit growth.

Results

IFRS 16 'Leases’ was adopled from the start of the financial year.
Ali comparative figures have been restated in accordance with the
new standard, which has been adopted on a fully retrospective
basis. Further detaiis are included in note 2 (t).

Group revenue in the year increased by 17% to £70.5 million (2019
£60.1 million), 5% of which was organic. Adjusted' profit before tax’
increased by 31% to £9.2 million (2019: £7.0 million) Statutory profit
before tax was £2.9 million (20719: £3.3 million}.

Adjusted? basic earnings per share increased by 19%1to0 5 7p
{2019: 4.8p}. Basic earnings per share was 0 7p (2019: 2.0p).

Net debt decreased to £2.8 million (2019 £6.0 million) with
leverage (calculated as net debt to EBITDA®) improving to 0.3 times
{2019: 0.7 times).

COVID-19 impact and response

Our response to the COVID-19 pandemic focussed on the health, safety
and well-being of our people and followed HM Government's advice on
working practices. We quickly enabled the majority of our employees to
work remotely and securely from the commencement of lockdown. The
ability to cperate remotely has been enhanced by Investments made
to improve the digital capabilities of the group, including the ability
to host online auctions for the sale of assets, electronic document
rmanagement solutions, & robust and flexible IT infrastructure and
ongoing investment in our digital marketing activities

The impact of the lockdown was as follows:

~» Business recovery and advisory continuad to be appointed on and
progress cases, realise assets and complete transactions as usual,

- The majority of property advisory and transactional service lines
have been able to operate remotely. However, commercial property
agency and valuations together with the business sales agency
service lines were disrupted as the lockdown paused acuvities,
which reduced revenue in the financiat year by ¢.£1 million, partially
mitigated by £0.4 million of cost reductions.

1 The board uses adjusted performance measures to provide meaningful information
on the operatung performance of the business The items excluded “om our
adjusted results are those wh ch anige Gue o 3CGUISITIONS 1IN accoraance with IFRS 3
They are not influenced oy the day-1o-6ay operaticns of the group

2 Profitbefore tax £2 9 million {2019 £3 3 million} plus transaction costs £3 2 million
{2019 £1.3 miflion} and amortisation of ntangible assats arising on acquISItions
£31 mlion 2019 £2.4 million}

e

Seereconciliaiion in note i0

4 Calculated as net debt to operating profit before transaction costs, amortisation,
depreoation on targible assets, software amurtisat on and after tinance charge on
lease | abilities



The group’s operating cash generation remained robust throughout
the lockdown period and the group has maintained low levels of debt
and a strong financial position. As a result of this we have not made
any claims under the Government's coronavirus support schemes.

Dividend

The board is pleased to recommend (subject to shareholder approval
atthe company's annual general meeting on 17 September 2020}
an 8% increase in the total dividend for the year to 2.8p (2019: 2.6p),
representing our third consecutive year of dividend growth. This
comprises the interim dividend already paid of 0.9p (2019: 0.8p)
and a proposed final dividend of 1.5p (2019: 1.8p).

This reflects the board's confidence in the group’s financial
position and the resilience of our financial performance. We
remain committed to our long-term progressive dividend policy,
which takes account of the market outlook, and the group's
earmings growth and investment plans.

The final dividend will be paid on 5 November 2020 to sharehclders
on the register on 9 October 2020, with an ex-dividend date of
8 October 2020,

Strategy

We believe that the execution of our strategy will continue to
enhance shareholder value through the delivery of strong,
sustainable financial performance,

Organic growth wilt be targeted through.
retention and development of our existing partners and employees;
recruitment of new talent;

- enhanced cross-selling of our service tines and expertise to our
wider chent base; and

= investment in technology and processes to enhance working
practices and improve the service to our clients.

Qur acquisition strategy is to target value-accretive acguisitions
in any of the following market segments;

+ insolvency to increase market share;

property services to enhance expertise or geographical
caoverage. and

+ camplementary professional services businesses to continue
the development of the group and its service cffering.

Board appointment

In December 2019, Peter Wallgvist joined the board as a non-executive
directer. Peter has spent his career in information technology and
in 2010 he co-founded and became CEQ at the Al company RAVN
Systems, which was acquired in May 2017 by iManage, a leading
vendor of dacument management systems for the legal and
professional services industries. Following the acquisition, Peter
served as VP of Strategy and Global Practice Director. specifically
to serve the professional services sector, until he left the

business in October 2019,

Peter brings significant experience of the use of information
technology in professional services firms, in the context of
improving working practices and strategic business development.

People

I'would like to thank all of our partners and staff for their valued
contribution to the business over the course of this finandcial year and
in particular their commitment and flexibility durng the uncertain
period of recent months, when we have continued to provide
excallent service to our clients in very different circumstances.
Our success as a business is reliant on the guality of advice and
service which is delivered to our clients by our peaple.

Current trading and outlook

Having started cur new financial year six weeks into the lockdown,
we are currently seeing the unwinding of these restrictions and
resulting increases in economic activity.

In the short term, the Government's financial support measures have
helped many companies to continue trading despite the extreme
economic downturn caused by the lockdown. Nationally the
Insolvency Service reported that numbers of corporate nsolvencies
dropped in the days immediately after the UK {lockdown was applied,
and in most cases have not yet returned to pre-lockdown levels.
We anticipate that as the support measures are rermoved in the
coming months there will be a significant Increase in corparate
distress, which is likely to fead to Increased insolvencies.

Qur recovery and advisory teams start the financial year in a strong
position te deliver results ahead of lastyear. This reflects an increased
order bock of committed future insolvency revanue, together with

the benefit of our recent acquisitions and orgamic investment, and

an expectation of an increase in market insolvency levels once the

short-term support measures for the economy are removed.

Most of our property advisery and transactional service lines have
continued to aperate remotely and activity levels have remained
robust. The insolvency-focussed areas of property and asset sales
are expected to benefitin line with any increase in insclvencies in
due course. The service lines impacted by lockdown are beginning
to recover as the economy opens up, with instruction levels having
improved through May, June and July to date; we anticipate further
recovery in performance over the remainder of the year. In addition,
we anticipate increased property auction lot numbers following
the expected resumption of in-room auctions from autumn 2020.
As a result of the above factors, we anticipate that divisional
financial performance is likely to be below last year and weighted
towards the second half of the year.

Overall, we anticipate that the group’s trading for the new financial
vear will have a greater weighting to the second half than in recent
vears and we will provide a further update on activity lavels at the

tima of our annual general meeting in September.

With our mix of service lines and activities, combined with our
strong financial position, we are well placed to continue delivering
medium to long-term growth. We continue to progress acguisition
and organic investment oppartunities given our strong balance
sheet, cash-generative businesses and counter-cychcal focus.

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

A VAV

o
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STRATEGIC REFPORT

Business model

Our bustness Is providing advice and transactional support to clients to protect, enhance and
realise the value of their assets, businesses and investments throughout the economic cycle.

We do this with a team of 740 partners and staff operating within the local business
community from offices across the UK.

People Anumber of the group’s

. Highly experienced and activities are influenced

e . ¢ bythe general economic
qualified professionals : environment and are likely
- Detailed market knowledge to perform better in differing

economic climates.
+ Entrepreneurial approach

Clients and relationships
« Diverse client base

« Enduring relationships
+ Trusted brands and reputation
Counter-cyclical activities (70%)

s Carporate and perzanalinsalvency e Distressed assel valuator ard

Know how S w Busmessandtnzroialiestructuring sales {oroperty, mach rery and
: GlMer DLsIress 4 )

+ Creative, problem-solving : e Debtacvisary

. : e Special stinsurarce ard vacan:
expertise : » Accelerated corporate fina—ce F = ‘ -

DI’ODE!F\;’ rsk Tanagernenl
» Established business practices

» Specialist services with barriers Dorlyclicad sotyvitiey v 0
to entr : i ]
y Corporate finange Wathmery ang otier
Commercal peopenty agency business asse: sales

; & TRame o -~ 1 e
< Valuatrsr of oroverty, 5508, ransportplanring and design

Financial MachInery ne LusiNgss assets » BUsINess sales agency
» Strong financial position

» Resilient financial performance

across the economic cycle Properiy aucLons Due il gence and
» Good operating margins Commercal orope iy management 5;-‘"\55’3(1 07 SUppar.
Bustairg consultancy FCrensic accodniing and

INvestEstions

Profile reflects current group actvities including annualised impact of acquisiions
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Our culture and values How we create value for our stakeholders

Values
« Trusted advisor to our clients

= Actwith integrity

= Take pride in our advice and solutions
provided to clients

Governance
« Board oversight

« Highly experienced leadership team in
executive and senior management positions

Risk management

= Established business and risk
management processes

» Dedicated compliance functions

» Business diversification to reduce
exposure to one activity or changes
in the business cycle

People

Provide an environment in which cur people
» are valued and enjoy working for the group
» can develop their talents and fulfil ther potential

» sharein corporate success through reward
packages including share incentive schemes

Chiensy

Optimise value for clients through providing

+ high quality service

- competitive and cost-effective charging structure
innavative and entrepreneuriat advice and solutions

Sustainable increase in shareholder value through
growing earnings per share
paying dividends
delivering share price appreciation

Annual report and accounts 2020 Begbies Traynor Group plc 0



STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy and objectives

Our strategy

The board believes the execution of this strategy will enhance shareholder value
through the delivery of strong, sustainable financial performance.

Organic growth will be targeted through: Our acquisition strategy is (o target value-accretive acquisitions

) L in any of the following market segments:
s rotertion and dovelaoment of our exsting partoers and employeas,

- o nscolency 1o increase markat share
o recmitert 0f new talent; B = o

» pranerty services 1 enhance expertise or geagraphical

* ernanced (TC'SS'SGE?W‘}E OF oL c8ry 8 INES ara exnert S8 10 our
- covergge, and

woder ol en: base; ana
v comelementary professional services businesses Lo corunue

* ovestment n Technology 370 processas 1o ennanee working the dovelapreent of the group and ity service »ffering
2 goveEll RSV Y o o xelfviace DITSHEY.

pracrices andimprase the service to our ¢l 2nis

Our vision

To be leaders in our chosen professional services giving outstanding advice and
transactional support to enable clients to protect, enhance and realise the value of
their assets, businesses and investments throughout the economic cycle.

Our strategic objectives

O 06 6 O

Increase the scale and Deliver sustainable Maintain our strong Continue to ensure high
quality of our businesses profitable growth, financial position enabling standards of corporate
both organicaily and enabling ncreased the investment in and governance and
by acquisition shareholder vaiue devetopment of the group responsibility

and cur people

o
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Key performance indicators

The board uses the following KPIs te manage the performance of

the business and progress against our strategic objectives.

705
0.1

REVENUE (£m) 50.1 497 524

{(2019: £60.1m) owonon

The measure
Revenue gererated from cperating activities in the
firancial yea~

The target

Tomcrease “evenue by 2xpard g the scale and qual ty
of cu operating busmiesses hoth argarseally and through
STPRLEEIC A0 GiEsItnns

57
ADJUSTED BASIC EPS (p) an E
32 33
(2019 4.8p) 16 17 18 19

The measure
Adjustec EPS 15 calculated by dividing adjusted profits
Gy the waighted average nurmber of shares missue.

The target
To debver growihin EPS torcieass shareholuer value

ADJUSTED PROFIT 9.2
BEFQRE TAX (£m) 70
£9.2

(2019, £7.0m) 16 17 18 19

The measure

Profit vefore rax gererates oy the business © e year,
arl usted e exclage mems anich anse due to acguis Bors,
wh<h are cnarged 1o the iIncome statemert unaer IFRS 3 and
are not nfluerced oy the day-to-day operations cf the group.

The target
To deliver sustamaole growth i adjusted orofit before sax

104 103
NET DEBT (Em) 75

6.0
£2.8m
(2019: £6.0m) 16 17 18 19 E

The measure
Borrowings net of cash balznces

The target

T rmiaintain a strong inancial posstion wite suffiaent
Cagacity InoJdr capital structure to enable cont nuing
mvestiment i the business with the ability to act
swiftly when opportunilies anse.

Commentary on financial performance on these KPIs and other
financial information is included in the finance review on page 12.

Annual repert and accounts 2020 Begbies Traynor Group plc
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Operating review

Ric Traynor

Executive chairman

Business recovery and financial advisory

Revenue increased by 15% (8% organic) to £49 6 million (2019
£43 .3 million), reflecting increased insolvency appointments, a
strong performance from our advisory team, and contributions
from current and prior year acguisitions.

Operating costs increased by £3.6 million to £38.0 million (2019
£34.4 million} principally as a result of the addition of costs associated
with acquired businesses, together with arganic investment and
increased people costs. However, these costs reduced as a percentage
of revenue, giving improved margins of 23 4% (2019: 20.6%).

Segmental profits’ increased by 30% to £11.6 million (2019: £8 9 million)

U o pacy

We quickly enabled our teams to work remotely and securely from
the commencement of tockdown, which enabled them to continue
to be appeinted on and progress cases, realise assets and
complete transactions as usual.

In the period immediately following lockdown the number of new
insolvency cases reduced in line with market trends (as detailed
below) and are currently broadly in line with appointment levels
fram 12 months ago.

Dpprating ravy-en

The number of people employed in the division has increased to
394 as at 30 April 2020 from 364 at the start of the financial year.
This expansion provides the capacity to deliver growth in revenue
and profits and we continue to consider further recruitment to
continue to build capacity for long-term growth

Business recovery

We have continued to invest in the business recovery tearm during
the year through recruitment of fee earners, with a focus on business
development and increasing capacity, and have also appointed four
new partners: two of which were external appointments together
with two internal promoticns. Subsequent to the year end we have
promoted a further two fee earners to partner.

In October 2012, we acquired Alexander Lawsan Jacobs ("ALj"), a
London-based insolvency and business recovery practice. The team

Beghies Traynor Group pl¢ Annual report and accounts 2020

of 24 partners and staff has been integrated into our existing strong
network of offices across London and the South East and made a
first-time contribution ahead of cur expectations.

We have had a successful year of new inselvency appointments, which
has increased our order book of committed future insolvency revenue
by 23% 10 £19.0 miflion (2019 £15.4 million). As a result of this, we have
also increased our market share to 10% (by volume) and we continue to
take the largest number of corporate insolvency appointments in the UK.

Financial advisory

We have continued to invest in our advisory fee earner team with the
addition of five new partners: two of which were external appaintments
and three internal promoticns, We also completed addittonal corporate
finance transactions cormpared with the prior year,

In September 2019, we acguired Regeneratus, an Exeter-based adwiscry
practice with particular expertise in restructuring, turnaround and legal
1ssues, The team has joined our existing South West practice, enhanang
the services and advice we can provide to our clients across the region,

In the period prior to the COVID-19 outbreak, insolvency volumes”
nationally continued to increase, with the underlying number of
corporate insclvencies in calendar year 2019 increasing by 7% to

17,224 (2018: 16,105, 2017 14,630Q).

TLTC Y a0

Nationally the Insolvency Service reported® that numbers of corporate
insolvencies dropped in the days immediately after the UK lockdown
was applied on 23 March, and in mest cases have not yet returned
to pre-lockdown levels.

They stated that this was likety to be a result of a combination of
factors including:

» HM Courts & Tribunals Service reducing the operational running
of the courts and tribunals;

s HMRC reducing their enforcement activity,

= the Insolvency Service, insclvency practiicners and Companies
House having te adjust to new working arrangements,; and

- delays in documents being provided to Companies House by
insolvency practitioners.

We also believe that the current Government support minatives
{including the staff furlough arrangements and lecan support
packages) are deferring some Insolvency appomntments.

Business recovery and financial advisory

REVENUE (£m) SEGMENTAL PROFITS {(£m)}

£49.6m £11.6m

(2019 £43.3m) (2079 £8.9m)

49.6
43.3

38.3 8.9
7.6



Property advisory and
transactional services

Revenue increased by 25% to £20.9 million (2019 £16.7 million),
reflecting the benefit of both current and prior year acquisitions.
Organic revenue was broadly in line with the prior year with returns
from our growth initiatives offset by the anticipated reductionin
revenue following the completion of several property insolvencies
{which enhanced margins in the prior year).

Revenue in the final six weeks of the financial year was adversely
impacted by the COVID-19 lockdown by ¢ £1 milon, which was
partially mitigated by £0.4 million of cost reductions.

Operating costs increased ta £17.0 millien (2019 £12.9 mullion),
principally due to costs associated with the acquired businesses

Segmental profits’ were £3.9 million (2019: £3.8 million), with
operating margins of 18.5% (2019: margin of 22.8% was enhanced
by revenue recognised on completion of property insolvencies

as referred to above). Cperating margins were adversely impacted
by the lockdown by ¢ 2%, with the underlying rate of ¢.20% in line
with previcus guidance of margins for the division.

ORI TR umpace

All service lines had performed strongly in the period up to the
commencement of lockdown in March and the majority continued
to operate remotely during lockdown:

+ Consultancy, commercial property agency and property
management teams operated as normal frem remote locations.

« The plant and machinery and property auction teams continued
to trade through our online channels (www.eddisons.com and
www.pugh-guctions.com), completing transactions and realising
value for our clients together with asset realisations on our
group insolvency appointments, albeit property auction ot
numbers reduced as detailed in the operating review below,

- Commercial property agency and valuations together with business
sales agency experienced reduced activity levels in late March and
April as 2 result of the lockdown_ In addition, the Department for
Cducation delayed its awards under the condition improvement
fund (CIF), which had been anticipated in April 2020, resulting in a
deferral of revenue recognition to the new financial year for our
building consultancy team

Property advisory and transactional services

REVENUE {£m) SEGMENTAL PROFITS (£m)
£20.9m £3.0m
(2019: £16 7my) (2019 £3.8m)

20.9
16.7 3.1

38 3.9

14.2

. ER £ T TS SN
Cur burding consultancy team has continued to develop, notably
with further growth in the education and wider pubiic sector. We
have continued to invest in and grow the team and its offering,
which included the recruitment of a Cambridge-based team in the
period. This has further developed our offering in Eastern kngland
following the acquisition of B5M in April 2019. In the delayed
announcement of CIF project awards (as noted above) we increased
the funding securad for cur clients to £28 millicn, up by 50%
compared to last year, which will generate project management
and consultancy fees for the group of £2.2 millicn in the new
financial year compared to £1 3 million last year.

Revenue from the property valuation team grew in the year, reflecting
our continued recruitment of experienced surveyors, which has
improved our geographical coverage and service to our clients.
The restrictions of lockdown impacted on activity levels at the end
of the financial year, however, we are encouraged by the increase
in the level of new Instructions we are receiving from lenders as
the UK exits its lockdown restrictions and anticipate that this will
progressively increase over the course of the new financial year.

The preperty transactional teams {agency and auctions) have
performed well in the year with an increase In agency revenue,
largely from the integration of tha BSM team acquired in April 2019

Commercial property auctions performed weil in the period pre
lockdown with lot numbers and revenue broadly in line with the
prior year. We converted our usual in-room auctions to an online
auction from April as a result of the lockdown restrictions and
have continued to offer this service to clients in the new financial
year, which has been a positive development enabling the team
to continue servicing clients’ requirements and realising value.
However, across the industry, ot numbers are currently €.60%
lower than normal ievels. We currently anticipate that we will be
able resume in-room auctions from autumn 2020 which we
believe will result in a recovery in lot numbers.

In October 2019, we acquired Ernest Wilson, a Leeds-based business
sales agent, which provides agency services for the sale of small
businesses across the UK. The team operate across a broad range
of secters ranging from food outlets and convenience stores (o
care homes, restaurants and hotels The acguisition enhances ocur
transactional support services and is also complementary (o the
BTG Advisory and cerporate finance offerings. Activity levels were
impacted during the lockdown period, but as with the property
valuations business, we are encouraged by the increase in transaction
levels we have experienced since the lockdown restrictions were
eased. We anticipate that transactional activity will progressively
increase over the course of the new financial year.

The number of people employed in the division has increased o
281 as at 30 April 2020 from 245 at the start of the financial year.

See note 4

2 Source. the Insolvency Service quarterly statistics on the number of corporate
Insolvencies 1 England and Wales on a seascnally adjusted basis, excluding the
one-off eftect of 1{7018 1,349, 2017 2,686) butk nsoivencies as dent:f ed by
the Insolvency Service

3 Source Insolvency Service Manthly msalvercy statstics, May and June 2020
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Finance review

Vig
Nick Taylor

Group finance director

Financial summary

2020 2019

£900 £000
Revenue 70,503 60,058
Operating profit (befare transaction
costs and amortisation; 10,119 7999
Finance costs (968) (1,006)
Adjusted profit before tax 9,151 65,993
Transaction costs (3,163) {1,283)
Amortisation of intangible assets arising
on acquisitions {3,104} (2.361)
Profit before tax 2,884 3,349
Tax (1,953} (1,102}
Profit for the year 931 2,247

IFRS 16 'Leases' was adopted from the start of the financial year
and all comparative figures have been restated in accordance
with the new standard Further details are included below and
in note 2 {t)

Operating result (before transaction costs

and amortisation)

Revenue in the year increased by £10 4 miltion to £70.5 million
(2019, £60.1 million), an overall increase of 17%, of which 5% was
organic and 12% was acquired', Operating profit increased by 27%
to £10.1 mullion (2019: £8.0 million). These results include the impact
af the COVID-19 lockdown In the final six weeks of the financial year,
which impacted property services revenue by c.£1 million, partially
mitigated by £8.4 million of cost reductions.

The financial performance by operating segment (as detailed in the
operating review) is summarised in the table below:

Revenue (£'000)
2020 2019 growth
Business recovery and
financial advisory 49,630 43,313 15%
Property advisory and
transactional services 20,873 16,745 25%
Shared and central costs - — —
Total 70,503 60,058 17%
Profit (£'000)
2020 2019 growth
Business recovery and
financial agvisory 11,588 8,889 30%
Property advisory and
transactional services 3,860 3,826 %
Shared and central costs {5,329) (4,716} 13%
10119 7999 27%

Total

Margins impraoved to 14.4% (2019: 13.3%), principally due to profit
growth and margin enhancement in business recovery and financial
advisory, together with shared and centrai costs reducing as a
percentage of group revenue to 7.6% (2019: 7.9%). These margin
enhancements were partially offset by property advisery and
transactional services as detailed in the operating review.

Adjusted profit before tax increased by 31% to £9.2 million
{2019: £7.0 million), as a result of the increased operating profits
detailed above, with finance costs in line with the prior year.

1 Partyear contribution from acquisinors in tbe year and full year centribution of prior year acquisttions
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Transaction costs Partners and employees

Transaction costs {as detalled in note 5)Yincreased to £3.2 million The average number of full-time equivalent {(FTE) partners and
(2019: £1.3 million} as a result of increased deemed remuneration staff working in the group increased over the year as a result of
charges resuiting from current and prior year acquisitions. acquisitions and organic investment.

Earnings per share - - 2020

. B usiness roperty
Adjusted basic e_armng_s per sharedincreased by 19% to 5.7p recovery advisory shared
{2019: 4.8p). Basic earnings per share decreased to 0.7p (2019: 2.0p). and and and

financial transactional suppott
Tax advisory services teams Total
The overall tax charge for the year was £2.0 million (2019: £1.1 million} ~ Partners 60 — — 60
as detailed below: Staff 234 237 — 471
2020 bee earners 294 237 - 531

Profit Profit

bofore tus Tax afier wax EFfective Suppor tledins 44 b o1 114

L'080 £'000 LU rate o :

i —  Total 338 243 61 642
Adjusted 9,151 {1,928) 7,223 21% OO
Transaction 2019
costs (3.163) - (3.163) - Busness Property

R recovery advisory Sha-ed
Amaortisation {3.104) 550 {2,514) 19% s ard and
Change in rate’ _ (615) (615) _ financial  transactional support
Elsi 1sY Services teams Total
Statutory 2,884 (1.953) 931 68% Partners 52 — — 52
Staff 217 173 — 390
2019
Profit Frofit Fee earners 269 173 — 447
bef T. f EfF
¢ O’SJS;‘, £'0§S 2 “;&}33 “",‘;ﬁ Support teams 43 6 60 109
Adjusted 6,993 {1,551) 5,442 22%  Total 312 179 &0 551
Transaction costs (1,283) — (1,283 — T “
o The ratio of our support teams to fee earning partners and staff
Amartisation {2,361 4458 (1.912) 19%  improved to 4.8 (2079: 4.1} reflecting the increased efficiency of
Statutory 3349 (1,102) 2247 g3y,  OUroperaticns as the group continues to grow, which has been

reflected in the improved operating margins in the year.

" Deferred tax charge of £0.6 million resulting from an increase
in deferred tax liabilities as a result of the UK corporation tax
rate now remaining at 19% rather than reducing to 17% as
previously announced.

2 Seereconciliatian nnote 10
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Finance review continued

IFRS 16

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ was adopted from the start of the financial year
and seeks to align the presentation of leased assets more closely
to owned assets. All comparative figures have been restated in
accordance with the new standard, which has been adopted

on a fully retrospective basis.

The adoption of IFRS 16 had the following impact on the group's
financial results for the year ended 30 April 2019:

reduction in profit before tax of £0.1 million (increase in operating
profit of £0 4 million offset by an increase in finance costs of
£0.5 million);

+ reduction in net assets of £1.5 million at 30 April 219, and

+ no impact on total cash flow; however net cash from operating
activities increased by £2.1 million and net cash used in
financing activities increased by £2.1 millicn.

Further details are included in note 2 (t).

Acquisitions
During the year, the group completed three acquisitions’

Alexander Lawscn Jacobs on 24 Qctober 2019 for inital
consideration of £2.35 million (£2.1 milion in cash and the issue
of 296,135 new ordinary shares} with a maximum additional cash
payment of £4.0 million subject to financial performance in the
five year period following the acguisition. In its financial year
ended 20 June 2019, the business reported annual revenue of
£3.1 million and pre-tax profits of £3.9 million, when reported
on the same basis as the group.

+ Ernest Wilson on 18 October 2018 for initial consideration of
£4.0 million (£3.0 million in cash and the issue of 1,163,874 new
ordinary shares) with a maximum additional cash payment of
£1.63 millicn subject to financial performance in the three year
pericd following the acquisition. In its financial year ended
31 July 2019, the business reported annual revenue of £2.2 miflion
and pre-tax profits of £0.7 million, when reported on the same
basis as the group.

+ Regeneratus on 23 September 2018 for initial consideration of
£GQ 5 million {In cash) with a maximum additional cash payment
of £1.1 million subject to financial performance in the four year
period following the acquisition. In its financial year ended
31 March 2019, the business reported annual revenue of
£0 & million and pre-tax profits of £0.2 million, when reported
on the same basis as the group.

A propertion of the consideration payable for these acguisitions
requires post-acquisition service obhigations to be performed by
the selling shareholders, These amounts are accounted for as
deemed remuneration and charged to the consclidated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the service obligation.

The net cash cutflow as a result of these acquisitions in the year
was £4 7 milion, comprising the cash consideration of £5.6 million
(including £4.2 miilion accounted for as deemed remuneration}
completion accounts payments of £2.5 million {including £0.% millicn
accounted for as deemed remuneration) offset by cash acguired
of £3.4 million

In addition, deferred consideration payments of £4.4 million
(including £3.7 million accounted for as deemed remuneration)
were made in the year.

The value of net asscts acquired exceeds the accounting value of
consideration {as a result of the majarity of consideration being
accounted for as deemed remuneration) and consequently a gain
of £2.2 million has been recognised within transaction costs in
the year.

Liquidity
The group is in a strong financial position. At the year end the
group had cash balances of £7.2 million (2019, £4.0 mullion)
together with undrawn, committed borrowing facilities of
£15.0 milion (2012 £15.0 millien) providing significant liquidity
entering the new financial year.

Our borrowing facilities mature in August 2023 and comprise
a £25 million unsecured, committed revolving credit facility and
a £5 millon uncommutted acquisition facility.

Net debt at 30 April 2020 was £2.8 mullion (2019: £6.0 million),
represented by cash balances (as noted above) of £7.2 million
(2019: £4.0 million) net of drawn borrowing facilities of £10.0 million
(2019: £10.0 million). As a result of the reduced levels of debt
together with increased profits, our leverage? reduced to 0.3 times
(2019: 0.7 times), All bank covenants were comfertably met during
the year.

3 Calculated as net debt to operatng profit (before transacuon casts, amarnsaton, depreciation or tangible assets, software amorusation and after finance charge on lease labht es)
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Cash flow

Net debt reduced by £3.2 million (2019 £1.5 million) due to strong
levels of free cash flow of £7.7 million and net proceeds from the
share placing of £7.8 million which funded acguisitton and deferred

cansideration payments of £9.1 rillion and dividends of £3.2 miflion.

Cash flow in the year 1s summarised as follows:

2020 2619

£:000 £:000
Net cash from operating activities
(before deemed remuneration) 10,428 3,475
Capital expenditure (789) {1,000
Capital element of lease payments (1,934) {2,148}
Free cash flow 7,705 6,327
Net proceeds from share issues” 7,818 10
Acquisition payments {4,710} (1,167)
Deferred consideration payments (4,390) (1,030)
Dividends (3,185) (2,649)

Reduction in net debt 3,238 1,491
" Share placing of 11,041,440 new ordinary shares completed on

26 July 2919,

Net assets

At 30 April 2020 net assets were £65.6 million (2019: £58.1 million).
The movement in assets reflects an increase of £4.0 million, from
post-tax adjusted earnings of £7.2 millian net of dividends of

£3.2 million; £9.8 million from the issue of new shares (resulting
from the placing and acquisition consideration i the pericd);
offset by the post-tax impact of acquisition-related transaction
and amortisation costs of £6.3 million

Going concern L
The groupisin a strang financial position and has significant liquidity

as detailed above. The majority of the group's service lines have

operated remotely during the period of the COVID-19 lockdown.,

In carrying out therr duties in respect of going concern, the
directors have completed a review of the group’s financial
forecasts for a period exceeding 12 months from the date of
approving these financial statements. This review included
sensitivity analysis and stress tests to determine the potential
impact on the group of reasonably possible downside scenarios,
ncluding those arising from the COVID-19 pandemic and the
resultant increase in risks for the group. Under all modelled
scenarios, the group’s banking facilities were sufficient and all
associgted covenant measures were forecast (o be met.

As such, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company and the group have adequate resources to continue

in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the financial information in these financial statements is prepared
on the going concern basis.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal risks and uncertainties

The operations of the group and the implementation of the group’s strategy involve
a number of risks and uncertainties, the principal of which are described below.

The group's strategic cbjectives (see page 8) include increasing the
scale and quality of our businesses and the delivery of sustainable
profitable growth. The board encourages an appetite of measurad
risk taking in the delivery of these objectives, which is balanced by
a process of risk tdentification, evaluation and management

The board has ultimate responsibility for the group's risk management
process and is supported in this by the audit commuttee The executive
directors and operational management teams are responsible for
the identification and evaluation of risks and the subsequent
implementation of specific risk management activities.

COVID-19

The directors have carried out a robust assessment of the material
and emerging risks facing the group. Outhned below ere the current
principal risks and uncertainties faced by the operations of the
group and the implementation of its strategy. The list s not
exhaustive and other, as yet unidentified, factors may have an
adverse effact The group’s controls are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risk and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk

The COVID-19 outbreak and subseguent
actions by authonities to control the outbreak
has implications botn for our people and

our operaticns, together with an increase in
other key business risks. notably operational
gearing, iguidity nsk and business continuity.

Business continuity

Mitigating activities

Our top prionty 15 the health, safety ard well-being of our
colleagues. We have the ability for the majority of cur employees
to work remotely and securely, enabling us to meet the
Government’s recommendations on working practices,

Change in risk

NEW

Ihe mitigation of other principal nsks impacted by the
COVID-19 outbreak are detailed below

Risk

S'gnificant non-IT events may impact on our
service to ¢lients and access to operating
locations with a potential adverse effect on
operational performance and reputation.

Mitigating activities Change in risk
We have business continuity plans in place across the business
which include the ability to work from alternate operating
locations. In the case of the COVID-12 operating restrictions, the

majority of our teams have successfully worked from Fome.

NEW

Operational gearing

Risk

The business is operationally geared with

a hugh proportion of salary ard property
costs, which cannot be immediately varied.
Consecuently, the group's profitability 1s
liable to short-term fluctiuations dependent
on activity levels

Liquidity risk

Mitigating activities Change in risk
This risk is managed through flexing our resource levels,

where possible, to align with current and anticipated levels of S

activity, together with the control of other discretionary items

of expenditure. A prudent level of spare capacity is retained to

facifitate peaks in activity.

Risk

The group's ability to generate cash from its
insolvency appointments s usually reliant
on asset realisations. A deterioration in
realisations in the short term could reduce
the group’s operating cash generation and
increase its financing requirements.

o

Mitigating activities Change in risk
The group monitors its risk of a shortage in funds through
regular cash management and forecasting and ensuring Y

suitable headroom within its banking facilities

The grodp's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of its committed banking
facilities, together with bank overdrafts and loans, finance leases
and hire purchase contracts if required
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Marketplace

Risk

The growp's markets are susceptible
IO MACroeconomic movemeants, such
as interest rates, GDP changes and
indebtedness levels.

The group operates in a highly
competitive market and is reliant
on the flow of new assignments

Reliance on key personnel

Mitigating activities Change in risk
The group's service lines have differing exposure to the
Macroeconamic environment as detaled in the business model 4

on page 6 providing mitigation of this risk at a consolidated level.

This risk 1s managed through a consistent effort In marketng

and selling activity and maintzining strong relationships with key 4
work providers, including financial insttutions, investors and

other professional intermed aries.

Risk

The business is dependent upor the
professional development, recruitment
and retention of partners and staff

Legal and regulation

Mitigating activities Change in risk
The group manages the risk of high staff turnover through
attention to human resource issues and the monitoring of <

remuneration levels against the wider market. including
long-term incentive arrangements.

Risk

The group operates in regulated markezs
Failure to comply with, or changes in,
regulation or legislation may have an adverse
impact on the activities of the business.

In the ordinary course of business, certain
aspects of the group's services are opinion
based and may be subject to chalferge.

Mitigating activities Change in risk
Ta ensure compliance with relevant legislation in performing
regulated activities, the group has dedicated compliance Py

functions which maintain procedures and palcies in line with
current fegislation

Where appropriate, the group will seek third party professional
corroboration. In addition, the group has appropriate insurance <
policies in place.

Failure or interruption in IT systems

Risk

A major failure in the group’s IT systems may
result in either a loss or corruption of data
or an interruption in client service, which
may have a conseguential impact on our
reputation and profitability.

There is a risk that an attack on our IT
systems by a malicious individual or group
may be successful and impact on the
availabrhity of these systems.

Mitigating activities Change in risk
Specific off-site back-up and resilience requirements have
been built into our IT systems whicn have been set up, as far V[

as reasonably practicable, to prevent unauthorised access and
mitgate the impact and likelihood of a major (T failure or cyber
attack The group is Cyber Essentials Plus accredited

{he group has disaster recovery plans in place to cover residual
risks wh ¢h cannot be mitigated.

The group is constantly reviewing its processes and resilience in
this area due to the increasing threat landscape.

©
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Stakeholder engagement

Section 172 statement

The following disclosure forms the directors’ statement required under section 414CZA of the Companies Act 2006 on how the
directors have had regard to the matters set outin section 172 (1) (3) to (f) in performing their duties. The board recognises that
engagement with its stakeholders is fundamental to the long-term success of the company and considers the views and interests
of all key stakeholders in its decision making.

Who are our key How do we engage with them?

stakeholders and why
we focus on them

Our people Employee engagement and interaction is encouraged through a variety of means including:

The business is dependent on the + corporate Intranets including a grouo-wide communication tool BTG Insight;
professional development, recruitment
and retention of our highly experienced
partners anc staff who are responsible staff one-to-one appraisals throughout the year.
for delivering a high quality service
to our chents.

team meetings; and

Az aresult of the period of remote working during the COVID ocuthreak we accelerated the roll out of
Microsaft Teams te enable cantinued communication and interaction across the business and

Tre directors recogrise that the between colleagues

quality, motivation and commitment
of our people 1s fundamental to the
Broup’s success. We believe 17 the value of developing future talent within the group. We continue to invest in our
people through providing financial suppert for employees who are undertaking professional training
to gain the qualifications required to progress with their careers. 11 addition, for our qualifieg staff
we have the BTG Academy programme to assist in developing the range of skills required to
undertake more senior roles in the orgamsation,

The group’s financial performance is communicated on a six monthly basis by the executive chairman.

Fmployees can share in the group’s success through membership of our sharesave
(save-as-you-earn) scheme,

We have appointed a third party agency to conduct a group-wide employee engagement survey
which will be completed in autumn 2020.

Sh hold The executive chairman and group finance director have primary responsibiity for investor relations
arenolagers o .

e ) (IR) and lead a regular programme of engagement. This includes presentations following the
Access ta capitalis of vital announcement of the financial results, which are also published on the group’s IR website to ensure
importance to the long-tarm they can be accessed by all shareholders. The IR programme maintains ongoing communication
success of our business. with shareholders and helfps to ensure that the board is aware of sharehalders' views.
Through our engagement activities, The board alsa normally receives feedback twice each year from its corporate hrokers on investors’

we aim to obtain investor support™or g the market's perceptions of the campany.
our strategic objectives and our

exar tion of them. In addition, the company makes announcements using the regulatory news service (RNS)

‘ throughout the financial year so that all investors are aware of current developments and financial
We believe that delivering value for performance of the group.
our shareholders ensures that the
business continues to be successful The annual general meeting of the company, wihich is generally atterded by all directors, provides an
in the long tarm and contindes to opportunity for all shareholders to ask guestions and tc meet the directors.

deliver value for all our stakeholders

Clients The group has a diverse client base across its service ines. Our client facing teams are in continuous
contact with their client base and have responsiility for both understanding their expectations and

Our clients are key to the success of managing the detivery of our service.

our business.

Community and Our offices operate In the heart of the local business communities and engage in numerous

environment activities In suppart of local charities together with financial suppert and spensorship initiatives.

We aim to provide opportunities for people to gain valuable work experience, which can enhance employment

We believe that through our i A . : ‘ . }
£ prospects. We do this through various means including work experience and university placements.

community engagement activities we
can make a beneficial impact on the We alsa have a number of employees on apprenticeship schemes, which provide an opportunity for
areas where our people live and work the individuals ta gain valuable work experience together with training and qualifications,

In many circumstances this can lead to fuli-time employment opportunities with the group.

The group's impact on the environment ana our plans ta irrprave this are detailed in the directors’ report.
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The principal decisions made by the board during the year are summarised below: L

Principal decisions

made in the year

COVID-19

response

Detailed in cha'rman's
statement on page 4

Considerations by the board

The implhcations resulting from the COVIE-19 pandemic had a potential impact across all stakeholders. Our inital
response was focussed on the health, safety and well-being of our people and following HM Government's advice on
working practices.

The resolutions made by the board which impacted on our key stakeholders included:

# all employees paid in line with cantractual terms for the two months of the lockdown period (April-May 2020)
regardless of ability to complete work with the restrictions in place;

* no claim made under the Government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme as a result of the group's overall
financial performance in tne year and strong financial poesition;

supplier payments made in line with normal contractual terms,

+ nterim dvidend paid and final dividerd recommended in ine with our progressive dividend policy, having
cansidered the group's liguidity and the balanced treatment of all other stakehclders in response to the
COVID-19 crisis;

# for certain employees in our cyclical activities where we anticipate a lower level of activity and pniarg for
the foreseeable future, we have adjusted the cost base for the new year through a reduction in team size
or remuneration basis; and

@

executive remuneration was considered (as detailec in the remuneration report on page 26) 0 the context of
group financial performance in the year, financial outlock for the new finanaal year and the balanced
treatment of other stakerolders in response ta COVID-149.

Share placing

Detailed In finance
review on page 12.

Acquisitions
Detailed in operating
review and finance review
on pages 10 and 12

The share placing was completed on a non pre-emptive basis. The board agreed that this was in the best
interests of all shareholders, as the funds raised enabled the group to accelerate acguisition opportunities
in line with our strategic objectives.

Having completed the share placirg noted above the group completed three acquisitions in the year.
The transactions were ir line with our acquisition strategy which the boad believe increases value for
all stakeholders and is for the long-term benefit of the groun.

Governance

Board appeintment detailed
in corporate governance
statement on page 22.

The board believes that it 1s important for it to contain the right mix of skills and experience in order to deliver
its strategy for the nenefit of all stakeholders. Peter Wallqvist was appointed to the board to deepen the
knowledge and understanding of IT at board level and in particular IT application within the group.

Approval
The strategic report on pages 1 tc 19 was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

R

Nick Taylor
Group finance director

S e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board of directors

Executive directors

Ric Traynor . Experience

© Richas been an insolvency practitioner since qualifying
: as a chartered accountant with Arthur Andersen in 1984,
Appointment date: © He established Traynor & Co. in 1589 whch, following the
©acquisition of Begbies London in 1397, became Beghies Traynor.

Executive chairman

May 2004
Ric has focussed on the development of the business,
inciuding the group’s successful introduction to AlM in 2004,
and on practice management. He continues to lead the
business and remains a major shareholder.

Nick Taylor . Experience

Nick was appointed to the board as group finance

¢ director in 2010, having joined the group as financial

Appointment date: controller in 2007. He is a chartered accountant who

December 2010 ¢ qualified with KPMG and previously held senior finance
: rolesin United Utilities PLC and Vertex Data Science

Limited, the business process outsourcer.

Group finance director

Mark Fry Experience
¢ Markwas appointed to the board in 2017, having joined the
. ;. groupin 2005 following an acquisition. He led our London and
recovery and advisory . South East region prior to his board appointment and plays
. akeyrolein developing the group’s advisory practice.

Head of business

Appointment date: :
July 2011 Mark acts as an insolvency practitioner, has been appointed

:onnumerous complex and high-profile assignments, and s a

former president of the Insolvency Practitioners Association.
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Non-executive directors

John May

Non-aexecutive director

Appeintment date:
October 2007

Graham McInnes
Non-executive director

Appointment date:
September 2004

Mark Stupples

Non-execulive diteclor

Appointment date:
July 2017

Peter Wallqvist

Non-executive director

Appointment date:
Decemper 2019

Experience

John was appeinted to the board in 2007 as a non-executive
director. He was previously an executive director of
Caledonia Investments plc and worked for the Hambros -
Group for gver 20 years, where he was an executive director

of Hambros Bank and joint managing director of Hambro
Countrywide. John has extensive non-executive experience,

having been a director of more than 40 listed and private

companies cperating both in the UK and globally.

Experience

Graham was appointed to the board in 2004, initially as group
finance director and subseqguently as corporate development
director. In 2012, Graham became a non-executive director.
He has held a number of senior finance positions including
corporate finance partner at Spicer and Oppenheim {now part
of Deloitte) and finance director of Enterprise plc, in addition
to developing his own corperate finance boutique in the 1990s.
Graham s also a director of Newton Technology Group pic,

a group specalising in the engineering technology sector.

Experience

Mark was appointed ta the board in 2017 as a nan-pxecutive
director. He has significant property services experience as a
result of his senior roles in major firms, including King Sturge
as UK managing partner, when he negotiated the sale of the
business ta JLL. Following the acquisition, Mark was appointed
as JLL's UK chief operating officer until leaving the businessin
December 2076, During this time, he completed a number of
UK acquisitions. Mark now runs his awn consultancy business
focussing on strategy and change in professional services
businesses, and is the chairman of Jones Lang LaSalle
Pension Trustees Limited.

Experience

Peter was appointed to the board in December 2013 as a
non-executive director, Peter has spent his career in information
technglogy. In 2010, he co-founded and became chief executive
officer at the Al company RAVN Systems which delivered digital
transformation initiatives in the professional services industry.
RAVN Systems was acquired by iManage, a teading vendor of
document and email management systems for the legal and
professional services industries in 2017, Following the acquisition,
Peter served as VP of strategy and global practice director for
iManage, until he left the business in October 2019,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Chairman’s introduction

Ric Traynor

Executive chairman

The board 1s committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. As chairman, it is my role to ensure (hat these standards
are promoted by the board and to ensure that the group 1s managed in
the best interests of shareholders and our broader stakeholder group.

We recognise that a positive culture, together with a robust
approach to governance, is key to the success of the erganisation.
As a professional services consultancy the group’s services are
regulated by externally governed codes of practice and ethical
behaviour. These regulatory professional standards are reinforced
by the board which sets the culture of the group in promaoting
entrepreneurial growth against the background of sound
regulatory compliance and ethical standards and a measured
approach to risk taking.

44

The board is committed to
maintaining high standards
of governance”

Beghies Traynor Group ple Annual repoert and accounts 2020

We seek to be a trusted advisor to all of our clients, to act with
integrity at afl imes and to take pride in the advice and solutions
we provide.

We have a clear approach to governance and risk management
with a highly experienced leadership team in executive and senior
management positions together with robust compliance and
governance procedures. In December 2019, Peter Wallqvist joined
the board as a non-execulive director. Peler brings significant
experience of the use of information technelogy in professicnal
services firms, in the context of improving working practices and
strategic business development

We are committed to a culture which ensures that our people
enjoy working for the group, can develop their talents and fulfil
their potential with us.

In the following sections we have provided detalls on our approach
to governance and application of the QCA Code, including reports
from the audit and remuneration committees. | believe that the
framework provided by the QCA Code contributes tc our ability

to deliver long-term sharehclder value and assists the board in
managing the business for all of its stakeholders, whilst maintaming
a flexible, efficent and effective management framework within

an entrepreneurial environment,

Further detail on our compliance with the QCA Code can be found
on our website at https://www begbies-traynorgroup.com/
investor-relatiocns/corporate-governance

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman
ANV RS



Corporate governance statement

Overview
The group has established specific committees and implemented
certain policies, to ensure that:

- it1s ted by an effective board which is collectively responsible for
creating and sustaining shareholder value through management
of the business;

- the board and its committees have the appropriate balance of
skills, experience, independence, and knowledge of the group
to enable them to discharge therr respective duties
and responsibilities effectively;

@

the board have a formal and transparent arrangement for
considering how ta apply the corporate reporting, nsk management
and internal controi principles and for maintaiming an appropriate
relationship with the group’s auditors; and

o

there is a dialogue with shareholders based on the mutual
understanding of objectives,

In addition, the group has adopted pelicies in relaticn to anti-corruption
and bribery; ant-maoney laundering and econgmic crime; whistleblowing;
health and safety; IT, communications and systems; and social
media, so that all aspects of the group are run in a robust and
responsible way.

Responsibilities of the board
The board is responsible for creating and sustarning shareholder
value through management of the business. It does this by:

- setting the strategy and direction of the company;

» maintaining appropriate controls to ensure the effective
operation of the company;

+ approving revenue and capital budgets and plans;

approving financial statements, rmaterial agreements and
non-recurring projects;

determining the financial structure of the company including
treasury and dividend policy;

averseeing control, audit and risk management; and
« setting and monitoring remuneraticn policies.

Specific responsibilities have been delegated to committees of the
board, being the audit and remuneration committees. The terms of
reference for these committees are available on the group's website

in the absence of a formal nominations committee the hoard is
responsible for ensuring that it retains an appropriate composition
and balance of skills and expertise together with considering
relevant succession.

Operational management of the group’s respective divisions

is delegated by the board to two principal operating boards
(business recavery and advisory services and property services)
which comprise relevant members of the group’s executive

and non-executive directors, together with senior partners

and managers from the respective divisions.

Board members

Itis important that the board contains the right mix of skills and
experience in order to deliver the strategy of the group. As such,
the board is comprised of the executive chairman, twe other
executive directars and four non-executive directors.

Role of the executive chairman

Ric Traynor, who established the business and led the group's
introduction to AIM, fulfils the role of executive chairman being
responsibie for the workings and leadership of the board together
with managing the business with the support of the other
executive directors.

Whilst the QUA Code requires the chairman to have adequate
separation from the day to day business, the beard believes the
current role is appropriate ang in the best interests of the group.
In recognition of this non-compiiance with the QCA Code the board
has a majority of non-executive directors and Graham Mcinnes, one
of 1ts nen-executive directors, acts as the senior independent director.

Executive directors

The group has two executive directors, in addition to the executive
chairman, whe are responsible for managing the delivery of the
business plans within the strategy set by the board

Non-executive directors

The group has four non-executive directars {NEDs). The NEDs role is
o provide oversight and scrutiny of the performance of the executive
directors, helping the business to develop, communicate and execute
its agreed strategy within the defined risk management framework.

The NEDs are expected to attend all board meetings, any committee
meetings of which they are a member and the annual general meeting
In addition, Mark Stupples is the non-executive chairman of the
property services operating board. NEDs are expected to dedicate
sufficient time to the group’s affairs to enable them to fulfil their
duties as directors.

The board considers that the four NEDs are independent of
management and have no business cr other relationship which
could interfere materially with the exercise of their judgement.

Company secretary

The company secretary provides advice and guidance (o the extent
required by the board on the legal and regulatory environment
and assists the chairman in preparing for and running effective
board meetings, inciuding the timely dissemination of approprate
information. All directors have access to the company secretary
and all group records. Each director is authorised to take external
advice at the expense of the company in support of his duties.

The company secretary also acts as the link between the company
and shareholders on matters of governance and investor relations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

Election of directors

Anincreased focus on investor relations which included

Each director serves on the board until the annual general meeting presentatons and meetings with non-shareholders and a new

following his or her election or appointment where the director

investor relations website, Following this, we were pleased to

must stand for re-election. In accordance with the group's articles welcorne a nurmber of new financial institutions as sharehelders

of association one third of the directors are re-elected on an
annual basis, with those directors who have been in office the
longest being subject to this requirement.

in our placing in July 2013,

In addition, in accordance with the GCA Code, any independent office network

non-executive directors who have served for more than nine years
will stand for re-election at each AGM.

Board evaluation

The most recent evaluation of board performance was conducted
in April 2019 facilitated by the company secretary, which invoived
the completion of a questionnaire by each director focussed on
the ten principles of the QCA Code. During the year the board has
focussed on the following areas for development which were
agreed as follows:

A strategy review was completed at the December 2015 board
meeting which reiterated the group’s long-term vision and
strategic objectives.

Board meetings
The full board meets formally on a quarterly basis and informally
where relevant throughout the year. Agendas for these meetings
formalise the matters reserved for decision by the oard with
papers circutated in advance for consideration and comment.
Meetings are structured to allow for the open discussicn and
debate of the key issues.

The group's CSR initiatives are being reviewed as an ongoing
nroject including areas for environmental efficiency across our

The board will complete a further evaluation of its performanca
in the new financial year.

Attendance at board and committee meetings during the financial
year Is shown in the table below:

Audit Remuneration
Boara restings COMNAITIES MEalings COMMITIEs Mestings

ehgible elgible eligible
Director attenced to attend attended ta attend attended o atiend
Ric Traynor 6 6 e -1 —2 —2
Nick Taylor 6 6 —3 —3 — —
Mark Fry 6 6 — — — —
John May 6 6 4 2z 2
Graham McInnes 5 6 2 2
Mark Stupgples 6 6 — — — —
Peter Wallgwist 2 2 — — — —

1 The execytive cha.rman attended thres audit commitiee meet ~gs by nvitation
2 The executwe charman atrended two remuneraton commirtee Meetngs by INvtation

3 The group f nance director attended four audit committes meetings oy iNvizauon
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Audit committee report

Graham McInnes

Chawman of the audit committee

On behalf of the board | am pleased to present the audit
committee report for the year ended 30 April 2020.

Members of the audit committee

The audit committee has two members, each of whom s an
independent, non-executive director. | am the chairman of the
committee and John May is the other current member of the
committee. The group company secretary 1s at the disposal

of the committee to advise and assist both of the members,

The executive chairman, the group finance director and a
representative of the group's external auditors are permitted
to attend meetings of the committee by invitation only, The
committee meets at least three times a year, in accordance with
1ts terms of reference.

The committee’s terms of reference are available on Lthe group's website,

Its principal responsibilities are to review and discuss governance,
financial reporting and internal controi and risk management.

Duties
Curing the year the committee discharged its responsibilities by:

- approving the external auditor's plan for the audit of the
group’s annual financial statements, including key audit matters,
key risks, confirmation of auditor independence and terms of
engagement and audit fees,

= reviewing the group's draft annual repart and accounts and
the external auditor’s detalled audit completion report including
the consideration of key audit matters and risks;

¥

reviewing the group’s half year and full year results announcements;

W

reviewing a report by management relating to the adoption of
IFRS 16 'Leases’ in this financial year. Following discussions with
management and the external auditer the committee approved
the adoption and disclosures of this revised accounting policy;

reviewing the performance of the external auditor;

« appointment of a group internal audit manager to enhance
the group's control environmeng; and

reviewing the group's risk management process including the
group’s key risks and mitigations.
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Role of the external auditor

The committee monitors the relationship with the external auditor,
BDO, to ensure that auditor independence and objectivity are
maintained, BRO has been the company’s auditor since 2017,
which followed a tender process. The committee will keep under
review the need for a further external tender. Any instruction for
BDO to provide non-audit services to the group must be approved
in advance by the committee. Fees payable to 8DO for non-audit
services provided during the year were £37,500. —

Having reviewed the auditor’s independence and performance,
the committee has concluded that these are effective and
recommends that BDO be reappointed at the next AGM.

Audit process

The auditer prepares an annual planning report for consideration by
the committee, which details areas of audit focus and anticipated
key audit risks, together with the anticipated |evel of materiality.
This 15 reviewed and approved by the committee. Following the
audit the guditor presented its findings to the committee. No
significant areas of concern were rassed by the external auditor

Internal audit

Having considered the increase in size and complexity of the group
in recent years, the committee decided to appoint an internal audit
manager in the year. The initial area of focus has been a review of
the group’s risk and internal contro! framework together with initial
testing of key controls. In future years the committee will agree
areas of focus for review and testing as part of a programme of
internal audit reviews.

Internal controls and risk management

The systems of internal control and risk management are the ultimate
responsibility of the board, which sets and reviews appropriate
polices. The systemns are designed 1o pravide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. Managers
are delegated the tasks of implementation and maintenance of
systems In accordance with those policies and the 1dentification,
evaluation, management and reporting of risk and control issues.
Controls and processes are reviewed on a periodic basis by the
group's finance, compliance and internal audit teams with any
issues and recommendations reported to the audit committee.

Budgets are produced annually and key performance targets
within them are set by the board. Performance against those
budgets 1s regularly reviewed and variances are investigated
and acted upon by members of the board and both head office
and divisicnal managers.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the group, together
with mitigating activities, are disclosed in the stralegic report an
pages 16 and 17.

Graham McInnes
Chairman of the audit committee

[T
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CORPQORATE GOVERNANCE

Remuneration committee report

John May

Chairman of the
remuneration committee

I am pleased to present this remuneration report, which sets
out the remuneration policy and the remuneration paid 1o the
directors for the year.

Members of the remuneration committee

The remuneration committes has two members, each of whom

is an independent, non-executive director. | am the chairman of
the committee and Graham Mcinnes is the other current member
of the committee. The group company secretary Is at the disposal
of the commuttee to advise and assist both of the members.

The executive chairman is invited to attend meetings of the
committee for discussion on executive remuneration matters
save for those relating to himself. The committee meets at least
once a year, in accordance with its terms of referenca

The members of the remuneration committee have nominated
Mark Stupples, one of the group’s non-executive directors, 1o be
an additional member of the remuneration committee and this
appointment was approved by the board of directors in July 2020,
Increasing the number of members to three.

The committee’s terms of reference are avaitable on the group's
website. its principal responsibilities are to determine the remuneraticn
payable to the executive directers and approve any management
long-term incentive and share-based payment schemes.

Policy
The remuneration policy of the group is driven by our appreach
to align the test interests of sharehclders and management

The committee looks to set remuneration for executive directors
at appropriate market levels, with reference to the roles and
responsibiiities of those directors. Incentive arrangements which
provide appropriate reward and incentive are implemented and
measured against key performance ¢riteria designed to promote
the best interests of shareholders.
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Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration arrangements for Ric Traynor and Nick Taylor
consist of a basic salary or directors’ fees and fixed profit share,
together with an annual bonus. |n addition, they receive income
protection insurance, private medical insurance and the provision
of a company car or cash allowance. Nick Taylor also receives death
in service benefits, During the year, the fixed element of the
remuneratiocn was reviewed for the first time since 2016 and was
increased by 10% with effect from 1 July 2019

The executive bonus scheme, which is applicable to Ric Traynor
and Nick Taylor, pays a percentage of salary/fixed profit share
based on maintaining or growing the group's adjusted earnings per
share in the year, with a maximum bonus of 100% of base salary
payable for earnings growth of at least 40%. The level of bonus
payable inthe year is disclosed in the table of directers’ emoluments.

Mark Fry1s a member of Begbies Traynor {London) LLP {'the LLP"),
a subsidiary of the group. During the financial year, he received a
fully variable profit share, determined as a proportion of the profits
of the LLP which is in line with the comparative period. In addition
Mark Fry receives a fixed director’s fee and the provision of a
company car,

Nane of the directers participate in the group’s defined contribution
pension scheme

COVID-19 considerations on directors’ remuneration
In light of the COVID-19 emergency the committee has considered
the level and basis of executive remuneration for the year being
reported and the new financial year. As noted in the strategic review,
the group has performed well in the financial year and in spite of the
adverse impact of the changes in operating conditions resulting
from the pandemic the group is in a strong financial position

The directors’ remuneration (as laid cut in the tables below)
contains a significant weighting Lo variable remuneration for the
executive directors and the quantum reflects the strong financial
performance of the group in recent years.

As part of the group’s COVID-19 response (as laid out in the
strategic report): all emplayees were paid in line with contractual
terms for the two months of the lockdown period (April-May 2020
regardless of ability to complete work with the restrictions in place;
the group has not made any apphcations under the Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme; and the group has maintained
its dividend policy. These decisions have been taken with due
regard to the group’s wider stakeholders and are possible due

to the our strong financial pesition.

The committee have therefore determined that the remuneration
policies for directors remain appropriate and have approved
bonuses/variable pay as detailed in the table opposite.



Long-term incentive plans
The share-based incentive scheme which has been put in place for some of the executive directors seeks to incenltivise the relevant

executive directors Lo enhance shareholder value through growing the group’s share price. Details of the group's share-based Incentjve
schemes are set out on page 64 with a proportion of such awards also being conditional on delivering sustained growth in earnings and
total shareholder return. No additional awards under this scheme were made in the year.

Non-executive directors
Non-executive directers’ remuneration is determined by the board.

Directors’' emoluments

Directors’
fees and orofit Variable Berefits 2020 Fixed Var'akble
sharesselary profit share Bonus ir hind total pay pay
Name of director £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive
Ric Traynor 322,483 — 226,000 28,332 576,815 350,815 226,000
Nick Taylor 215,833 — 140,000 1,042 356,875 216,875 140,000
Mark Fry 15,000 595,008 — 30,000 640,008 45,000 595,008
Non-executive
John May 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Graham Mclnnes 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Mark Stupples 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Peter Wallgvist! 20,000 _— — — 20,000 20,000 —
Aggregate emaluments 693,316 595,008 366,000 59,374 1,713,698 752,690 961,008
1 Drectors' fees from date of aoposntment en 10 December 2019
Directors’
fees and profit Var-able Benefits 2019 Fixed variable
share/salary profit share Bonus ‘n kird total 0ay pay
Name of airector L £ £ £ £ £ E
Executive
Ric Traynar 323,312 — 225,000 26,683 574,995 349,995 225,000
Nick Taylor 200,000 — 95,000 1,183 296,183 201,183 95,000
Mark Fry 15,000 558,920 — 30,000 1,003,920 45,000 958,920
Non-executive
John May 40.000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Graham Mclnnes 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Mark Stupples 40,000 — — — 40,000 490,000 —
1,995,098 716178 1,278,920

Aggregate emoluments

658,312

958,920

320,000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Remuneration committee report continued

Directors’ share options
Aggregate emeluments disclosed above do net include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the company
granted to or held by the directors. Details of share option awards for directors who served during the year are as follows:

Exercise
Number at Granted “xercised Expirea Number at price Earliest Expiry
Name of cirector T May 2019 nyear 1N year inyear 30 April 2020 (nence) evercise date date
Mark Fry 1.000,000 — —_ — 1,000,000 36.7 30 April 2016 25 October 2023
Nick Taylor 250,000 — — — 250,000 51.0 25 July 2017 25 July 2024

500,000 — - — 500,000 631 31 October 2020 31 October 2028
The market price of the company’s shares at the end of the financal year was 104 pence and the range of market prices during the year
was 60 pence to 105 pence.

Detalls of share options granted by the company at 30 April 2020 are given in note 22. None of the terms and conditions of the share
options were varied in the year. No options were exercised in the year.

Directors’ interests
The directors who heid office at 30 April 2020 had the following interests in the shares of the group:

30 April 2020 1 May 20°9
Name of directors Description of shares number Y number %
Ric Traynor Ordinary shares 27,178,980 21.26 27,178,980 2377
MNick Tayler Ordinary shares 117,540 0.09 117,540 010
Mark Fry Ordinary shares 734,390 0.57 127,466 0.1
John May Ordinary shares 309,036 0.24 276,574 0.24
Graham Mclnnes Ordinary shares 917,432 0.72 917,432 0.80
Mark Stupples Crdinary shares 30,727 0.02 30,727 0.03
Peter Waligvist Crdinary shares 30,000 0.02 — —

No changes took place in the interests of directors between 30 April 2020 and 20 July 2020.

John May

Chairman of the remuneraticn committee

PRSI IR SO
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the
group, together with the financial statements and auditor’s report
for the year ended 30 April 2020. The chairman’s statement,
strategic report, directors’ remuneration report and corporate
governance statement form part of the directors’ report and

are incorporated into it by cross-reference.

The stakeholder engagement section of the stralegic report
contains information in respect of the group’s key stakeholders
and business relationships, including emplayees, clients,
shareholders, and the community and environment.

Directors
The names and brief biographical details of the directors are
shown on page 20

Risks and uncertainties
The principal business risks and uncertainties to which the company
is exposed are detalled on page 16 of the strategic report.

Dividends

The directors recornmend a final dividend of 1.9 pence (2019: 1.8 pence
per ordinary share} to be paid on 5 November 2020 to shareholders
onthe register on 9 October 2020. This, together with the interim
dividend of 0 9 pence paid on 11 May 2020 (2019: 0.8 pence),
makes a total dividend of 2.8 pence far the year (2019: 2.6 penice),

Substantiai shareholdings

On & July 2020, the company had been notified, in accordance with
sections 791 to 828 of the Companies Act 2006, of the following
interests in the ordinary share capital of the company:

Percentage
Name of halder Number held
Hof Hoorneman Bankiers 8,621,418 752
OVME Vermogensbeheer 7,190,119 563
Amati Global Investors 6,888,178 5.37
Close Brothers Asset Management 6,852,949 536

Other than the above holdings and those of the directors
(see page 28), the board is not aware of any beneficial holdings
in excess of 3% of the issued share capital of the company

Financial instruments
The financial risk management cbjectives and policies of the group
ara shown in note 20.

Capital structure
Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the
movements in share capital during the year, are shown in note 21.

Political donations
The company made no political donations during the year.

Disabled employees

Applications for emplayment by disabled persons are always
fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant
concerned, In the event of members of staff becoming disabled,
every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the

group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It 15
the pelicy of the group that the training, career development
and pramation of disabled persons should, as far as passible,
be identical to that of other employees.

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions report
The following table provides details of the group's GHG emissions
for the year.

Energy
Tonresof  consumed
COze (k)
Combustion of gas and consumption of fuel
for the purposes of transport 401 1,618,000
Purchase of electricity for our own use 216 846,000
Total emissions above per full-time equivalent

member of staff

096 3,838

The emission factors used were from the UK Government's GHG
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2020.

During the year the group engaged third party consultants to
complete its ESOS repart. As a result of the operating restrictions
imposed by the Government lockdown the consultants have been
unable to complete the report. The report wilf be completed in the
new financial year and the group will review the recommendations
contained in the report to identify potential actions to reduce
GHG emissions.

Employees

The policy of the group is to recruit, promote, train and develop
its people by reference to ther skills, abilities and other attributes
of value to their role in the business. The group considers itself

to be an equal opportunitics employer.

For details on employee engagement refer to stakeholder
engagement in the strategic report on page 18.

Auditor
Each of the directers at the date of approval of this annual report
confirms that:

= so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit
informaticn (as defined in the Companies Act 2006} of which
the company’s auditor is unaware; and

« the director has taken all the steps that he cught to have taken
as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the company's auditor 1s aware
of that infoermation.

In accerdance with secton 489 of the Companies Act 2006,
a resclution will be proposed at the annual general meeting
that BDO LLP be reappointed as auditors.

Appraved by the board of directors and signed an behalf of
the board

John Humphrey
Company secretary

vy
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsibfe for preparing the annual report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected
Lo prepare the group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted

by the European Unicn and the company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law}.
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the
profit or loss of the group for that period. The directers are also
required to prepare financal statements in accordance with the
rules of the London Stock Exchange for companies trading
securities on AlM.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

3

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business,
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financal statements comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Website publication

The directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and
the financial statements are made availabte on a website. Financial
statements are published on the company’s website in accordance
with legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity

of the company’s website is the responsibiity of the directors.

The directors’ respensitility also extends to the ongoing integrity
of the financal statements contained therein.



Independent auditor’s report

SO b TR s Ty T

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plc (the ‘Parent Company’} and its subsidiaries (the 'Group’) for the
year ended 30 April 2020 which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
In equity, the consclidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the Company balance sheet, the Company statement of
changes in equity and nates to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reparting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial staterments 1s applicable faw and
International Financiat Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporang framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financiai Reporting Standord in the United Kingdom and Repubfic of Irefand (United Kingdom e
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 30 Aprit 2020
and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

«

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

“

the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statermnents in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conciusions refating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the I1SAs (UK} reguire us to report to you where:

# the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

+ the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified raterial uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about
the Group's or the Parent Company’s ability to continue to adopt the gaing concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
manths fram the date when the financial statements are authorised for 1ssue.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified,
including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resaurces in the audit; and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report continued

P e o b S T e

Key audit matters continued

Carrying value of goodwill

e

How we addressed the key audit matter in the audit

The Group's goodwill measurement and
valuation policy 15 set out In note 2 of these
financial statements, with a summary of
goodwili set out an page 56.

In accerdance with 1AS 36, an annual
impairment review of goodwill (see note 11)
is required at each year end.

Theimparment assessment is performed by
rranagement based on comparing the value
in use to the carrying value of goodwill. This
calculatan invelves a number of management
judgements and estimates, and as such holds
the potential for bias or error

Furthermore, the £50.2 million goodwill figure
held in the balance sheet at the year end 15
highly materal and there s a risk that this value
may not be supported Hence we treated this

a key audit matter.

Management prepared impairment calculations
based on the forecasts of the insclvency
cash-generating unit (CGU), to which all the
goodwill belongs. They also applied sensiivity
analysis to the assumptions used in the
calculations, as set out in note 11, Management's
assessment found significant headroom and
concluded ro impairment was required.

Revenue and unbilled

income recognition

= We reviewed the methoaology applied by management Lo ensure consistency with orior
year calculations

= Wereviewed the allacation of goedwill to ensure 1t was correctly allocated to the
insolvency CGU.

We reviewed the assumptiors used with:n the forecast figures for the insolvency CGU. We
compared these to the actual results of this CGU i the financial year ended 30 April 2020,
investigating and challenging management on any unusual or significant movements
expected going forwarc based on our understanding of tne business. We also checked
for consistency with the forecasts used in the going concern assessment.

v We reviewed the key assumptions made within the calculatior. The key assumptions are
cons:dered to be the weighted average cost of capital {WACC), the growth rate applied
to the calculations and the econamic cycles assumed in the model (based on historical
trends} as this drives volumes forecast for the insolvency practice, which is counter-cyclical
to the general economic environment in the UK.

+ We engaged the use of aninternal auditor's expert Lo consider the appropriateness of
management’s WACC estimate, and whether it was reasonable for use in this calculation.

~ We tested the sensitivity calculations and applied our own sensitivity analysis to the key
assumptigns to consider the headroom avallable,

Key observations:
- As aresult of performing the above procedures we did not identify ary material
misstatements in respect of gaodwill

How we addressed the key audit matter in the audit

The Group's revenue recognition policy 1s set
outin note 2 of these financial statements.

In line with augditing standards, thereis a
presumed significant nisk of fraud in relation to
revenue recognition. We have considered the
applicaton of the Group revenue recognition
policies and determined tnat the significant nisk
in the period is that of the overstatement of
unbilled income recorded using stage of
completion calculations at year end through
either the manipulation of provisions for
unrecoverable amounts or cut-off of employee
costs incurred around year end, from which
unbilled income balances are calcuiated. As
noted in the accounting policies {note 2 (),
judgements are formed over a large portfolic
of cases meaning individual judgements are
not material, however, as aresult of the large
number of insolvency cases being handled by
the Group, the aggregate balance of unbilled
Income s significant. As a “esult of the
significant level of estimatior involved in

the balance there 15 potential for material
misstatement and significant audit work was
performed in this area

¢ We tested the operating effectiveness of a key control to ensure that there 1s sufficient
challenge placed by the group finance tearn on monthly unbilled income estimates and
Judgements, ncluding provisions. Group finance review and challenge that key estimates
and provisions against unbilled income are appropriately calculated, each maorth, by
individual insolvency practitioners and fee earners We have attended a sample of monthly
finance review meetings and ebserved the level of challerge and follow-up of individual
cases, which provides assurance over the internal control in place.

A sample of year end unbilled income balances was tested through questicnnaires being
issued to the fee earners and then reviewing their responses and associated evidence,
e.g. creditors resclutions, property valuations and balances held in bank accounts, against
the year end position set out. This included questions an the impact of COVID-19 on
realisations and asset values held for the case.

» We reperformed the stage of completion calculations as at year end for a sample of cases
and robustly chalienged the judgements and estimates made by management in relation
to the status of cases by locking at the costs to complete for each of the cases. We also
challenged recoverability of the fees by looking at the value of assets held within each of
the case which supported fee estimate,

We also reviewed the stage of completion estimates made in the prior year for a sample of
cases and assessed their accuracy based on actual outcomes.

* We performed cut-off testing around the year end for employee ¢osts to ensure revenue
had been recognised in the correct period.

© We performed a high level review of the ageing of year end unbilled income, to eval.ate
movements m ageing from the prior year and confirm the ageing profile is in ine with cur
understanding of the business.

Key observation:
= As aresult of performing the above procedures we did not identfy any materal
misstatements in respect of revenue recognit'on or unbilled income
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Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. For planning,
we consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissians, could influence the economic decisions of
reasonabie users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements. In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that
any misstatements exceed materiality, we use a lower materiality level, performance materiality, tc determine the extent of testing needed.

Importantly, rmisstaternents below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified
misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when evatuating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Performance materiality has been set at 70% of materiality. This has been assessed on criteria such as historic adjustment levels, complexity
and the controls of the Group.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whale as follows:

Group materiality £450,000 (2019: £350,000)
Group performance materiality £315,000(2019: £245,000)
Parent Company materiality £337.500 (2019 £260,000)

Parent Company performance materiality £236,250(2019: £182,000)

Basis for Group materiality 5% of adjusted profit before tax
Basis for Parent Company materiality Based on net assets and restricted to 75% of Group materiality
Rationale for the benchmark adopted Beghies Traynor Group plc is AlM listed, with profit making intentions and

significant investors external to the Group. Adjusted profitis considered
to be the key KPI for the Group and as such a profit-based materiality
pasis is considered appropriate. We adjusted for amortisation and
transaction costs as these costs do not specifically relate to any
underlying operating activities, The adjusted figure gives a more
appropriate basis in line with a benchmark used for business decision
making and used by the investor/shareholder community.

For each significant component in the Group audit we allocated a materiality within the range of £390,000 to £50,000 (2019: £260,000 to £36,000).

We agreed with the audit committee that we would report to the committee all individual audit differences identified during the course of
our auditin excess of £18,000 (2019: £14,300). We also agreed to report differences below these thresholds that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and
assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level.

For the five significant components we identified, we performed a full scope audit of the complete financial information. For the
remaining components, we performed analytical reviews and other audit procedures on specific accounts within that component that we
considered had the potential for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial statements, either because of the size of
these accounts cr their risk profile.

Audits of the components were performed at a materiality level calculated by reference to a proportion of Group materiality appropriate
to the relative scale of the business concerned.

The group audit team conducted the audit of all components of the business and no component auditors were used during the audit process.

Other information

The directors are rospensitle for the other information. The other infarmation comprises the informaton included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our auditer's report thereon. Our opinion on the financiat statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there 1s a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to
repart that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report continued
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinien, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial staterents, and

the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nathing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Campanies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
In our opinion:

adequate acceunting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequare for our audit have not been received
from branches nct visited by us; or

the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine Is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern tiasis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liguidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whele are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our epinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can anise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsitilities for the audit of the financial statements s located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website: www.frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company's members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyane other than the Parent Comnpany and the Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Mark Langford (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BODO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Leeds, United Kingdom

AT N A

BDO LLP is a mited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (wilh registered number GC305127).
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Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

ERI I L O S A A AV

Restated
2020 2019
Notes £000 £000
Revenue 3 70,503 60,058
Direct costs {40,317) (34,246)
Gross profit 30,186 25,812
QOther operating income 363 393
Administrative expenses {26,697} {21,850)
Operating profit (before amortisation and transaction costs) 10,119 7999
Transaction costs 5 (3,163) (1,283)
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisitions {3,104) (2,361)
Operating profit 3,852 4,355
Finance costs 7 {968) {1.006)
Profit before tax 2,884 3,349
Tax 8 {1,853) {1,102)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 231 2.247
Earnings per share
Basic 10 0.7 pence 2 { pence
Diluted 10 0.7 pence 1.9 pence

The profit, comprehensive income and earnings per share is attributable to equity holders of the parent
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Capital

Share Share Merger redemption Retained Total

capital prerium reserve reserve earnimgs aquity

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
AT May 2018 as previously reported 5,508 22,789 20,248 304 8,852 57,701
Restatement (see note 2 (1) — (603) — — (855} (1,458)
At 1 May 2018 as restated 5,508 22,186 20,248 304 7997 56,243
Total comprehensive income for the year
as restated — — — — 2,247 2,247
Dividends — — — — {2,649 (2,643)
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 99 95
Shares issued as consideration for
acquisitions 74 — 834 — — 5083
Shares issued as deferred consideration 93 — 1,107 — — 1.200
SIP shares issued 1 7 — — — 8
Shares issued for share-based payments a3 — — — (43 —
AT 30 Apnil 2019 5,719 22193 22,189 304 7,651 58,056
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — 931 931
Dividends — — — — {3.185) (3.185)
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 102 102
Shares 1ssued as consideration for acquisitions 73 — 1177 — — 1,250
Shares issued as deferred consideration 38 — 561 — — 599
Placing shares issued 552 7,265 — — — 7,818
Sharesissued for share-based payments 4 — — — (4) —

6,386 304 5,495

At 30 Apil 2020

Adescription of the nature and purpose of each reserve is included within note 29.
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Consolidated balance sheet

Restated Reszated
2020 2018 2013
Notes £:000 £°000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 59,437 59,342 59,061
Property, plant and equipment 12 1,800 1,766 1.512
Right of use assets 13 7.021 7.399 7,210
Trade and other receivables 14 4,586 3,220 1,759
72,844 7777 69,542
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 36,460 32,332 78,816
Cash and cash equivalents 7.247 4,009 3,518
43,707 36,341 32,334
Total assets 116,551 108,118 101,876
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 (22,223) {22,048 {16,381
Current tax liabilties {1,878) (1,976) {1.5428)
Lease liabilities 16 (2,232) (1,927} (2,147
Provisions 18 (383) {478) {576)
(27.216) (26,429) (20,652)
Net current assets 16,491 9,312 11,682
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables - —_ (1,093)
Borrowings 17 {10,000} (10,000 {11,000)
Lease liabilities 16 (6.137) {6,667} (6,079}
Provisions 18 {1,935) (2.070) (2,187)
Deferred tax 19 {5,692) 4,896) (4,622)
(23,764) (23,633) (24,981)
Total liabilities (50 980) {50,062 {45,633)
Net assets 65,571 58, 056 56,243
Eqmty e . S et - .
Share capital 21 6,386 5719 5,508
Share premium 29,459 22793 22786
Merger reserve 23,927 22,189 20,248
Capital redemption reserve 304 304 304
Retained earnings 5,495 7,651 7,997
Equity attributable to owners of the company 65,571 58,056 56,243

The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plg, registered number 5120043, were approved by the board of directors
and authorised for issue on 20 July 2020. They were signed on its behalf by:

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor

Executive chatrman Group finance director
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated cash flow statement

Restated
2020 2019

Notes £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated by operations 24 4,724 8,016
Income taxes paid (2,186} {1,362}
Interest paid on borrowings (436} {491)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (454} {460}
Net cash from operating activities (before deemed remuneratien payments) 10,428 9,475
Deemed remuneration payments (8,770} (3,772}
Net cash from operating activities 1,658 5,703
Investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets " (103) (216)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (686) (784)
Acquisition of businesses (2,970) (1,778}
Deferred consideration payments (720) —
Cash acquired in acquisition of businesses 23 3,360 3,353
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (1,119 575
Financing activities
Dividends paid 9 (3,185) (2,649)
Proceeds onissue of shares 7,818 10
Capital element of lease payments (1,934) {2,148)
Repayment of loans - (1,000)
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities 2,699 {5,787)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,238 491
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,009 3,518

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

1. General information
Beghies Traynor Group plc s a company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006, The address of the registered
office is 340 Deansgale, Manchester M3 4LY,

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the group operates.

2. Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

R P LA £1 S
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK law and Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs?
as adopted by the European Union (EWY, including International Accounting Standards (1AS) and Interpretations issued by the IFRS

Interpretations Committee.

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis and all accounting policies have been applied consistently
throughout the current and preceding year, apart from those affected by the implementation of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ as noted in () below.

Going concern

The group's business activities, together with factors likely to affectits future development, performance and position, are set out in the
chairman'’s statement and strategic report The financial position of the group, the principal risks and uncertainties, its cash flows,
liquidity pasition and borrowing facilities are described in the strategic report.

Furthermore, notes 17 and 20 to the financial statements include full detalls of the group’s borrowings, in addition to the group's ohjectives
and policies for managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives and its exposures to credit, interest rate and liquidity risk.

The group has principal committed banking facilities of £25 million, af which £2.8 million was utibsed (£10 million drawn fess £7.2 million
of cash balances) at 30 April 2020

In carrying out their duties in respect of going cancern, the directors have completed a review of the group's current financial position
and cash flow forecasts for a period exceeding 12 months from the date of signing these financial statements, This review included
sensitivity analysis to determine the potentiat impact on the group of reasonably possible downside scenarios, including those arising
from the COVID-19 pandearmic.

After making enguines, the directors have a reascnable expectation that the company and the group have adequate rescurces to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual
report and accounts.

Adjusted performance measures

Management believes that adjusted performance measures provide meaningful informauocn te the users of the accounts on the operating
performance of the business and are the performance measures used by the board to menitor operational performance and determine
remuneration levels (including bonuses) far executives and senicr management. Accordingly, adjusted measures of operating prefit, profit
before tax, net cash from operating activities and earnings per share exclude, where appiicatle, transaction costs, amertisation of intangible
assets arising on acquisitions and related tax effects on these items. These terms are not defined terms under IFRSs and may therefore not
be comparable with similarly titled profit measures reported by other companies. They are not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to,
GAAP measures.

The items excluded from adjusted results are those which arise due to acquisitons and are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in accordance with IFRS 3. They are not influenced by the day-to-day operations of the group.

Crdasis of coosoligation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plc and entities controlled by
Beghies Traynor Group plc (its subsidiaries, which include mited liability partnerships). Control is achieved if all three of the following
are achieved: power gver the investee, exposure to variable returns for the investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power (0
affect those vanable returns.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The results of entities acquired or disposed of during the year are indluded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisttion or up to the effective date of dispasal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, the accounts of the subsidiaries are adjusted te conform to the group’s accounting policies All intra-group transactions,
balances, ncome and expenses are eliminated on consolidation

Y B ns s LOMIL 0 g
The acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses s accounted for using the acquisition method.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued
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2. Accounting policies continued

iy B i o mimia

Measurement of consideration

The consideration far each acquisition i1s measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and eguity instruments issued by the group in exchange for control of the acquiree,

Contingent consideration s initially measured at fair value at the date of the business combination. Any subsequent adjustment to this
fair value {such as meeting an earnings target}, where the consideration is payable in cash, 1s recognised In the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Deemed remuneration
in accordance with the IFRS Interpretations Committee's interpretation of paragraph BS5 of IFRS 3, the cost of the business combination
excludes consideration which requires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the selling shareholders.

These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration and are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the service obligation.

Payments paid in advance of the service obligation being delivered are recognised as an asset within trade and ather receivables,
The balance is disclosed within current assets for service obligations in less than 12 months and in non-current assets for service
obligations after more than 12 months. in the event that the service obligations have been delivered in advance of the payment
being made, the resultant liakility 1s recognised within trade and other payables

Fair value assessment

Identifiable assets acquired and liakilities and conungent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initialty at their fair
values at the acquisition date. Where the fair value of the assets and liabilities at acquisition cannot be determined reliably in the initial
accountng, these values are cansidered to be provisional for a period of 12 months from the date of acquisition. If additional information
relating to the condition of these assets and liabilities at the acquisition date 1s obtained within this period, then the provisional values are
adjusted retrospectively. This includes the restatement of comparative infarmation for prior periods.

Gain on acquisition or goodwill

A gain on acquisition arises where the group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination. This typically arises where there are post-acquisition service obligations in relation
to the contractual consideration payments which results in these payments being excluded from consideration under IFRS 3. A gain on
acquisition is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Goodwil! arises where the cost of the business combination exceeds the group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recogmsed. This 1s recognised as an asset and 1s subject to impairment tests as noted in 2 {d).

Acquisition costs
Acquisition costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as mcurred and separately disclosed due to
the nature of this expense.

iy
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation is recognised as an asset.

Following iitial recognition, goodwill is subject to impairment reviews, at least annualiy, and measured at cost less accumulatad impairment
losses. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incorme and is not subsegquently reversed.

On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of the group’s transition to IFRS has been retained at the previocus UK GAAP amounts,
subject to being tested for impairment at that date and at least annually thereafter.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are measured initially at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
The carrying ameunt 1s reduced by any provision for impairment where necessary.

On a business combination, as well as recording separable intangible assets already recognised in the balance sheet of the acquired
entity at their fair value, identifiable intangible assets that are separable or arise from contractual or other legal rights are alsc included
in the acquisition balance sheet at fair value.

Amortisation is charged within administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income so as to write off the
cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, on the following basis:

Software 10%-33% of cost

Intangible assets arising on acguisitions 10%-50% of fair value at acquisition
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2. Accounting policies contin.ed

All assels are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated iImpairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful hives, on the following basis:

Computers 20%-33% of cust

Mator vehicles 25% on a reducing balance basis
Office equipment 15%-25% of cost

Leasehold improvements evenly over period of lease

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and 15 recognised within profit or foss for the periad

. . e ‘ ey K ATy
At each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether Lthere

is any indication that those assets have sutfered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent

from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generstng unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset {or cash-generating unit} s reduced to its recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequenlly reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) s increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amoeunt that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit} In prior years, Areversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

T EE TS TIPSR

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised in the group's balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and on-demand deposits and other short-term highly liguid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other receivables (excluding unbilled income and deemed remuneration)
Trade receivables are initially recogmised at their transaction price, and then subsequently stated at amortised cost less impairment
provision for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

The group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses {ECLs ) under IFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provisicn for trade receivables. The group makes specific provisions for lifetime expected credit losses against
trade recelvables where additicnal information is known regarding the recoverability of those balances. For the remaining trade receivables
balances, the group has established an ECL model using provision matrices for recognising ECLs on its trade receivables, based on its
historical credit loss experience over a twe year period, adjusted (where appropriate) for forward-logking factors.

Trade receivables are written off where thereas no expectation of recovery.

Other receivables are stated at their fair value.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially stated at their fair value and subsequently at amortised cost,

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered inte.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments
Equity instrurments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

2. Accounting policies contirued

Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of directissue costs. Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an amartised cost basis to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive inceme using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise

SOV O
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event. it s probable that
the group will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably esumated.

5

The group enters inte lease agreements for the use of buildings, motor vehicles and office equipment.
Leases are accounted for at inception by recognising a right of use asset, lease liabihty and dilapidations liability.

The lease liability 1s measured at the present value of fixed payments under the lease. IFRS 16 requires payments to be discounted using the
Interest rate implicit in the lease. Where that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for the group’s leases, the group's
incremental borrowing rate 1s used, being the rate that the group would have to pay e borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right of use assetin a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions,

The initial value of the right of use asset s the present value of the fixed payments under the lease, any initial direct costs and an estimate
of dilapidation costs under the terms of the lease. Depreciation of the right of use asset is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount If the
asset's carrying amount is greater than 1ts estimated recaoverable amount.

Lease liabilities increase as a result of the finance cost ¢charged to the income statement over the lease period, so as to produce
a constant pericdic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period, and the lizbilities are reduced for lease
payments made. Lease payments are allocated between principal and interest cost.

The group has taken advantage of the exemptions available under IFRS 16 not to apply the recognition and requirements of the standard
to leases with a term of 12 months or less, or leases for which the underlying asset value is low. For these leases, a charge Is recognised
in the income statement based on straight-ine recognition of the lease payments payable cn each lease, after adjustment for lease
incentives received.

The group sometimes negotiates break clauses in 1ts property leases, with the typical factor in deciding to negotiate a break clause being
the length of the lease term. The carrying amaunts of lease liabilities are not reduced by payments that would be avoided from exercising
break clauses because, as at the point of lease inception, it was considered reasonably certain that the group would not exercise its right
to exercise any break in the lease.

S VOTIME s BODENITE

Revenue is recognised when control of a service or product provided by the group is transferred to the customer, in line with the group’s
performance obligations in the contract, and at an amount reflecting the consideration the group expects to recaive in exchange for the
service or product.

There are no significant judgements required in determining the group's performance obligations in its contracts as the significant
majority of cantracts contain only one performance obligation

The group recognises revenue from the following activities.
« Insolvency and advisory services;
corparate finance services,
= commercal property management;
+ property consultancy services; and

commercial property and other business asset disposals.

Insolvency and advisory services

For the group's formal insolvency appointments and other advisory engagements, where remuneration is typically determined based
on hours worked by professional partners and staff, the group transfers control of its services over time and recegnises revenue aver
time if the group:

provides services for which it has no alternative use ar means of deriving value: and
has an enforceable nght to payment for its performance completed to date, and for formal insclvency appointments has approval
from creditors tc draw fees which will be paid from asset realisations.
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Insolvency and advisory services continued

On certain contracts the group may not have enforceable rights to payment at the start of the contract and revenue will not be recognised
until these rights are In place. This may occur on insolvency appointments where the recovery of assets 1s subject to litigation or the realisation
of assets I1s uncertain.

Progress an each assignment is measured using an mput method based on costs incurred to date as a percentage of total anticipated costs.

In determining the amount of revenue and the related balance sheet items {such as trade receivables, unbilled income and deferred
Income) to recognise in the period, management is required to form a judgement on each individual contract of the total expected fees
and total anticipated costs.

These estimates and judgements may change over ime as the engagement completes and this will be recogrised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the revision becomes known. These judgements are formed over alarge
portfolic of contracts and are therefare unhkely to be individually material

invalces on formal insolvency appointments are generally raised having achieved approval from creditors to draw fees. This is typically
settled on a timely basis from case funds On advisory engagements, invoices are generally raised in fine with contract terms,

Where revenue is recognised in advance of the invoice being raised {in line with the recognition criteria above) this is disclosed as unbilled
income within trade and other receivables Where an invoice is raised in advance of the revenue being recognised, this is disclosed as
deferred income within trade and other payables.

Corporate finance services
Generally, revenue 1s recognised at a point In time on the date of completion of the transaction or when unconditional contracts have been
cxchanged. Fees are typically a fixed percentage of the transaction value and are invoiced to the client (and typically payable) on completion.

Commercial property management

The group manages commercial properties for owners, The primary performance obligation relates to the ongoing management of the
property and revenue is recognised over time on a straight-line basis as the services are performed in ling with the contract terms. The
majority of customers are invoiced quarterly in advance, with a deferred income balance recognised for services still to be delivered.

Property consultancy services

The group provides a wide range of professional property services including valuation, building consultancy, planning and insurance
broking. Revenue will typically be recognised at a pont in time following satisfaction of the performance obligation(s) in the contract,
at which point the group s typically enutled to invoice the customer, and payment will be due.

Commercial property and other business asset disposals

The group is appointed to sell properties, businesses, machinery and other business assets far clients through physical and online
auctions, commercial property agency and business sales agency. Generally, revenue is recognised at a point in time on the date

of completion of the asset sale or when unconditional contracts for the sale have been exchanged. Fees are typically a fixed percentage
of the transaction value and are invoiced to the client (and typically payable) on completion.

Financing component

In line with IFRS 15, the group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant finan<ing component
if the group expects, at contractinception, that the pericd between the group transferring its product or services to a customer and when
the customer pays will be one year or less.

W B owing £o%-
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the periad In which they are incurred

sPorm- s arel fe 0 oment nenst
The group operates a defined cantribution scheme in the United Kingdom for all qualifying employees. The costs of the pension funding
borne by the group are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an expense as they fall due,

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the aquity instruments at the grant date. The fair value excludes
the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-setded share-based
transactions are set out in note 22.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments 1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet dare, the group revises
its estimate of the nurber of eguity imstruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a correspending adjustment to equity resarves.
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2. Accounting policies contrued

Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends tc equity shareholders, this is when they
are paid to shareholders. In the case of final dividends, this 1s when approved by the shareholders at the AGM,

The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current tax

Current tax is based con taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the conselidated statement
of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible In other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group's hability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it1s probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and fiabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwiil or from the initial recognition {other
than in a business combinaticn) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it1s no longer probable
that suffictent taxable profits will be avatlable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the period when the hatulity is settled or the asset is reahsed.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome except when it relates to items charged or
credited to eguity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitres are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assels aganst current tax
liabllities and when they relate to income taxes by the same taxation authonity and the group intends o seftle its current tax assets
and habilities on a net basis.

ipi Cha.ge ons g under Beghles Trac orLondoe 107 put snd sl o o
The liability to the group under this option {3s detalled in note 28) is charged to the consolldated statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the contractual obligation, and included as a transacticon cost within administrative expenses.

e Cret-o s uzing judgemonts o 0 othar v o : SAbovaiEie L o unly
In the pracess of applying the group’s accountmg pelicies, the group is requwed to make certain estimates, judgements and assumptions
that it believes are reasonable based upon the Information available These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the pericds presented.

On an ongoing basis, the group evaluates its estimates using historical experience, consultation with experts and other methods
considered reasonable 1n the parucular circumstances. Actual results may differ from the estimates, the effect of which is recognised
In the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known.

The group believes that the estimates and judgements in relation to goodwill have the most significant impact on the annual results
under IFRS as set out below.

Goodwill

The group records all assets and liabilities acquired in business combinations, including goodwill, at fair value. Goodwill is not amortised
butis subject, at a minimum, to annual tests for impairment. The initial goodwill recarded and subsequent impairment review require
management to make subjective judgements concerning the value in use of cash-generating units. This requires an estimate of the future
cash flows expected 1o arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate to calculate present value. Detalls of the
assumptions made are provided in note 17,

therso oie. St Lo ey
Intangible assets in a business combination
Onthe acquisition of a business the identifiable intangible assets may include brands, customer relationships, customer contracts,
order backlogs and websites. The far value of these assets s determined by discounting estimated future net cash flows generated by
the asset where no active market for the assets exists. The use of different assumptions far the expectations of future cash flows and the
discount rate would change the valuation of the intangible assets, and the estimate of expected contingent consideration payable affects
the resulting gain on acquisition recognised, Details in relation to current year acquisitions are in note 23.
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International Financial Reporting Standards
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant standards and interpretations were inissue but not yet
effective and have not been applied in these financial statements.

Effective aate

International Financial Report ng Standards {1FRSs’) (year end carrmencirg on or after)
Definiton of a business (Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’) 1 January 2020
Amendments to IAS 1 and tAS 8 Definition of Material’ 1 January 2020

Other new amended standards and interpretations issued by the IASB that apply to the financial statements do notympact the group as
they are either not relevant 1o the group’s activities or require accounting which is consistent with the group’s current accounting policies.

: : ; : PN AN S
Adoption of new accounting standards
The group has adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ with effect from the start of this financial year, which replaces 1AS 17 'Leases’ and its related
interpretations. IFRS 16 seeks to align the presentation of leased assets more closely to owned assets. Under IAS 17 all the group’s leases
wheare the group is a lessee were operating leases. The group recognised a lease charge in the income statement based on straight-line
recognition of the lease payments payable on each lease, after adjustment for lease incenuves received.

IFRS 16 reguires lessees to recognise a nght of use asset and lease lability at lease inception, with liabilities recognised at present value.
The initial value of the right of use asset s the present value of the fixed payments under the lease, any initial direct costs and an estimate
of dilapidation costs under the terms of the lease.

In the income statement, the operating lease charge as recognised under IAS 17 1s replaced with a straight-line depreciation charge on
the right of use asset and an Iinterest cost on the lease liability. This therefore results in an increase in operaung profit, which is reported
prior to interest charges. The depreciation on the asset is charged evenly over the term of the lease; however, the interest charge will be
higher in the initial years of a lease and reduce over time In aggregate over the leasa term the charge to profit will be the same under
both accounting standards.

The cash flow statement will reflect the lease payments previously included within cash generated by operations as interest payments
{within net cash from operating activities} and repayments of obligations under leases (within net cash used in financing activities), There
is no impact on total cash flow by year from adoption of the standard.

The group has taken advantage of the exemptions available under IFRS 16 nat to apply the recognition and requirements of the standard
to leases with a term of 12 months or less, or leases for which the underlying asset value is low The recognition of these exempted leases
will therefore continue unchanged - a charge will be recognised in the income statement based on straight-line recognition of the lease
payments payable on each lease, after adjustment for lease incentives received.

As part of the adoption of IFRS 16, the group has reviewed its policy for the recognition of dilapidation obligations arising on leases
Previously the group recognised a dilapidation provision when it was considered probable that an obligauen would crystallise through
the group exiting the property at any forthcoming lease break or end of lease (‘refevant date’). All feases were reviewed af |least two years
prior to any relevant date tg determine the requirement for any provision In addition, any anerous property commitments provided for
under J1AS 37 ‘Provisions’ included an assessment of dilapidation obligations. The provision under this policy at April 2019 was £0.6 million

The group will now include an estimate of dilapidation costs at lease commencement, with the discounted velue recognised as a provision
and included within the initial cost of the right of use asset. As part of the IFRS 16 restatement at 1 May 2018 an adjustment of £1.7 million
has beern recorded to increase the dilapidation provision on the balance sheet, with a corresponding entry in retained earnings. There
was no material Impact on reported profits in prior years as a result of the previous assessment.

The standard has been adopted on a fully retrospective basis, which includes a full restatement of the comparative results in the financial
year ended 30 April 2019,

In summary the adoption of IFRS 16 had the following impact on the group's financial results for the year ended 30 Apnl 2019
= ncrease In operating profit (before amortisation and transaction costs) of £0.4 million to £8.0 million;
= increase in finance costs of £0.5 million ta £1.0 million,

reduction in profit before tax of £0.1 million;

reduction in net assets of £1.5 million arising from the recognition of right of use assets, lease liabilities and increase in dilapidatians
provisions, offset by the derecognition of IAS 17 working capital balances and onerous lease provisions (net of deferred taxy and

no impact on total cash flow; however net cash from operating activities increased by £2.1 million and net cash used in financing
activibies increased by £2.1 million.
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2. Accounting policies continued
g L
Adjustment to provisional accounting estimates under I[FRS 3

Following agreement of completion accounts for prior year acquisitions, there were sorme amendments to provisional estimates. In
accordance with 2 (¢) above, provisicnal values are adjusted retrospectively and comparative information is restated,

Reclassification of deemed remuneration payments
Deemed remuneration payments {see note 2 {c)) have been reclassified from investing cash flows to operating cash flows.

Reserves reclassification
The group has reclassified the premium on shares issued in relation to employee share schemes from share premium to retained earnings.
AT 1 May 2018 and 30 April 2019 the adjustments between share premium and retained earnings were £603,000 and £997,000 respectively.

The tables below show the impact of these restatements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Adjustment

Lo provisional
As reported estimates on Restated
30 Apnl 2075 [FRS "6 acquisitions 30Aprl2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 60,058 — — 60,058
Direct costs (34,276} 30 — (34,246)
Gross profit 25,782 30 — 25812
Other operating income 383 — — 393
Administrative expenses 122,163) 432 (119) {21,850)
Operating profit before amartisation and transaction costs 7,553 416 — 7,939
Transaction costs {1,180) 16 (119) (1,283)
Amartisation (2,361) — — {2,361)
Operating profit 4012 462 {119} 4,355
Finance costs (486} (520} — {1,006)
Profit before tax 3,526 (58} (119 3,349
Tax {1,092) (10} — {1,102)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2,434 (68} (19 2,247
Earnings per share
Basic 2.2 pence 20 pence
Diluted 21 pence 1.9 pence
Consolidated cash flow statement
Redlassification
of deerred
As reporied remuneration Restated
30 Aonl 2019 IF25 16 payments 30 Aprl 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Net cash from operating activities 7,327 2,143 (3,772) 5,703
Net cash {used in) from investing activities (3,187) — 3772 575
Net cash generated from (used i) financing activities (3,639) (2,148) — (5,787)
MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents 491 — — 491
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Consolidated balance sheet

AdjLstment
As reported to provs.enal Reserves Restated
30 April 2019 IFRS 16 estrates  reclassification 30 Apnil 2019
£'000 £000  onacguisitions £000 £:000
Non-current assets
intangible assets 59,392 — — — 59,392
Property, plant and equipment 1,766 — — — 1,766
Right of use assets — 7,395 — — 7,399
Trade and other receivables 3,220 — — — 3,220
64,378 7,399 — — 7777
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 32,653 (33%) 13 — 32,332
Cash and cash equivalents 4,009 — — — 4,009
36,662 {339) 18 — 36,341
Total assets 101,040 7,060 18 — 108118
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (22,664) 753 (137 — (22,048)
Current tax habilities {(1,976) — — — (1,976)
Lease liabilities — (1,927) — e (1,927)
Provisions (588) 110 — - (478)
(25,228) (1.064) (127} — {26,429)
Net current assets 11,434 {1,403) {119} — 9,912
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings {10,000} — — — (10,000)
Lease lighilities — (6,667) — — {6,667)
Provisions {763) (1,307} — — (2,670)
Deferred tax {(5.348) 452 — — (4,896)
{16,111} {7.522) — — {23,633)
Total liabilities {41,339 (8,586) (137) — (50,062)
Net assets 59,701 (1,526) {119) — 58,056
Equity
Share capital 5,719 — — — 5719
Share premium 23150 — — {997} 22193
Merger reserve 22189 - — — 22189
Capitel redemption reserve 304 — — — 304
Retained earnings 8,289 (1,526) (119) 997 7,651
Equity attributable to owners of the company 59,701 (1,526) (119) - 58,056
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Consolidated balance shee

As reported Reserves Restated
1 May 2013 IFis 16 reclassf cauen CMay 2013
£000 000 £050 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 59,061 — — 52,067
Property, plant and equipment 1,512 — — 1,512
Right of use assets — 7210 — 7,210
Trade and ather receivabies 1,759 — — 1,759
62,332 7,210 — 69,542
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 29,041 (225) — 28,816
Cash and cash equivalents 3518 — — 3,518
32,559 (225) — 32,334
Total assets 94,891 6,985 — 101,876
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (17,268) 887 — (16,381)
Current tax liabilities {1,548) — — (1,548}
{ease liabilities — (2,147) — (2,147)
Provisions {783) 207 — {576)
{19,599 (1,053) — (20,652)
Net current assets 12,960 {(1,278) — 11,682
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables (1.093) — — {1,093}
Borrowings {11,000} — - (11,000)
Lease liabilities - {6,079) — (6.079)
Provisions (414} (1,773) — (2,187)
Deferred tax (5,084) 462 — (4,622}
(17,59M) {7.390) — (24,987)
Total liabilities {37190 (8,443) — (45,633}
Net assets 5773 {1,458) — 56,243
Equity
Share capital 5,508 — — 5,508
Share premium 22,785 — {603 22,186
Merger reserve 20,248 — — 20,248
Capital redemption reserve 304 — — 304
Retained earnings 8,852 {1,458) 603 7997
57,701 {1,458} — 56,243

Equity attributable to owners of the company
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3. Revenue
Revenue recognised in the year of £70,503,000 (2019 £60,058,000) was exclusively from contracts vath customers recognised
in accordance with IFRS 15 An analysis of revenue by nature of activity and recognition method s detailed in note 4.

The contract balances recognised are:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Contract assets
Trade receivatles 5,487 6,485 ™
Unbilted income 24,492 21,310

29,979 27795

Contract liabilities
Deferred income (4,168) (3.338)

The movernent in contract assets in the year comprises: £1.4 million increase from acquisitions in the year and £0.8 millicn increase due
to organic growth in the year. The movement in contract abilities in the year comprises, £0.6 million increase from acquisitions in the
vear and £0.2 million increase arising from formal insolvency appointments,

Revenue recognised in the year that was included in deferred income at the beginning of the year was £1 3 million {2019 £1.1 million).

For the group's formal insolvency contracts, which are expected to be completed within three years, the aggregate amount of the overall
transaction price which has been allocated to performance obligations that are unsatsfied {or only partially satisfied) at 30 April 202015
£19.1 million (2019 £15.4 million).

For other contracts, the group has taken the practical expedients available under IFRS 15 not to disclose any amounts relsting to
contracts which had an expected duration of one year or less,
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4. Segmental analysis
The group's operating segments are established on the basis of the compenents of the group that are evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker. The group is managed as two operating segmeants: business recovery and financial advisory services, and property advisory and

transactional services.

The performance of the group's cperating segments is assessed by the chief operating decision maker on the basis of revenue and
operating profit {(before armortisation and transaction costs), which is presented below. Revenue is presented by basis of recognition

and by service line, in accordance with IFRS 15,

Business
recovery and Property
financial advisory and Shared
advisory  transactional and central
sarvices services costs Consolidated
2020 2020 2020 2020
L0006 £'000 L£'ooe L'o00
Revenue
Total revenue from rendering of professional services 49,630 21,021 — 70,651
Inter-segment revenue - (148) - (148)
Revenue from external customers 49,630 20,873 —_ 70,503
Over time 45,977 2,439 - 48,416
AL @ DoINT 1IN trme 3,653 18,434 — 22,087
Revenue from external customers by basis of recognition 49,630 20,873 - 70,503
Insolvency and advisory services 45,977 — — 45,977
Corporate finance 3,653 - - 3,653
Curnmercial propi Ly mandgengnd - 2,439 - 2,439
Property consultancy services - 10,717 — 10,717
Commercial property, businesses and other asset disposals - 7.717 - 7,717
Revenue from external customers by service line 49,630 20,873 — 70,503
Oparating profit before amortisausn and transaction costs 11,588 3,860 (5,329} 14,119
Business
recavery and Property
financial advisory and Unaliocated
advisory  transactional corporate
services services amounts  Consolidated
2020 2020 2020 2020
L0080 L£roo0 L000 L0000
Balancc shert
ALsetls Y1,bY6 17,bU8 12471 110,551
Liabilities (31.689) {6,503) {12,788) (50,920)
Net assets 60,007 11,105 (5.541) 65,571

Unallocated amounts include current and deferred tax liabilities, cash and borrowings.
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4. Segmental analysis continued

Business
recovery ani Property
financial adwsory and Snarec
SOVISOrY transactional aro central Restated
SEMVICES ServICes casts Consolidated
2619 015 2019 2019
£'000 £000 £000 £0900
Revenue
Total revenue from rendering of professional services 43,313 16,903 — 60,216
Inter-segment revenue — (158) — {158)
Revenue from external customers 43,313 16,745 — 60,058
Qver time 40,459 2,098 — 42,557
At a pointintime 2,854 14,647 — 17,501
Revenue from external customers by basis of recognition 43,313 16,745 — 60,058
Insolvency and advisory services 40,459 — — 40,459
Corporate finance 2,854 — — 2,854
Commercial property management — 2,098 — 2,098
Property consultancy services — 8,921 — 8,921
Commercial property and other business asset disposals — 5,726 — 5726
Revenue fram external customers by service line 43,313 16,745 — 60,058
Operating profit before amortisation and transaction costs 3,889 3,826 (4,716) 7,999
Business
recovery and Property
financial advisory and Unallocatec
adwisary tansacnonal corporate
services services amnounts {onsolidated
015 2019 2Ms 204
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance sheet
Assets 88,933 15,176 4,009 108,118
Liabilities {31,415) (6,065) {12,582) (50,062)
Net assets 57518 5111 (8.573) 58,056
'};‘1 | SN

The grkoup’s principal operations and rarkets are located in the UK.
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5. Profit for the year
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging {crediting).

Restated

2020 2019

£'000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 718 563
Depreciation of right of use assets 2,137 2,094
Impairment of right of use asset — 369
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,315 2,558
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment kY —
Staff costs (note 6) 41,313 34,673
Short-term lease expense 332 337
Impairment of receivable balances (note 14) 304 276
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on trade receivables {note 14) 44) {195)
During the year, the group obtained the following services from the group's auditor, at the costs detalled below.

2020 2613

£'000 £000
Fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company’s annual accounts 30 30
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its associates for other services to the group
- the audit of the company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 92 82
Total audit fees 122 112
- other advisory services 38 34
Total non-audit fees 38 34
During the year, the group Incurred transaction costs as detailed below:

Restated

2020 2019

£000 £000
Deemed remuneration 3,908 2,806
Acquisition costs 583 154
Gain on acquisition (note 23) {2,217} (2,806)
Charge arising under Begbies Traynor Londeon (LLP) put and call optian (note 28) 889 1,129
Total transaction costs 1,283

These transaction costs are all included within administrative expenses,
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6. Staff costs

The average total number of partners and staff {including executive directors) working within the group during each year was:

2020 2019
number nurmber
Partners 65 55
Staff 636 552
701 607
2020 2m9
£000 £000
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Wages, salaries and partners’ profit share 36,323 30917
Social security costs 2,697 2,257
Pension costs {note 27) 2,191 1,400
Share-based payments 102 99
41,313 34,673
2020 2019
£000 £000
Short-term benefits 1,714 1,895
Share-based payments 2 P
1,716 1,597
number number
The average number of directors who:
Had awards receivable in the form of shares under a long-term incentive scheme 2 ?
No directors participated in the group's defined contribution pension scheme during either year.
7. Finance costs
Restated
2020 2019
£000 £000
Interest on borrowings 454 4386
Finance charge on lease liabilities 454 460
Finance charge on ditapidation provisions 60 60

Total finance costs

968
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

8. Tax
Restated

2020 2019

£'000 £000
Current tax charge 2,048 1,313
Adjustment in respect of prior year (271) —
Total current tax charge 1,777 1,313
Deferred tax credit {note 19) {686) {211
Adjustments in respect of prior year 247 —
Impact of change in tax rate 615 -
Total deferred tax charge (credit) 176 (217)
Totalincome tax charge 1,953 1102
Corporation tax 1s calculated at 19% (2019 19%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the consclidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Restated

2020 2019

£000 £000
Profit before tax 2.884 3,349
Noticnal tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2019 19%) 548 636
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior years (6} —
Non-deductible impact of transaction costs 601 244
Impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax balances 615 —
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 195 222
Total tax expense reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1,953 1102

At summer Budget 2015, the Government announced a reduction in the corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% for the fiscal years

beginning 1 April 2017, 1 April 2018 and 1 April 2019, with a further reduction fraom 19% to 18% for the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2020,
At Budget 2016, the Government announced an additionat 1% reduction te 17% for the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2020. These rates

were reflected in the group's deferred tax calculations at 30 April 2019

In March 2020 the Government announced that the rate from 1 April 2020 onwards would remain at 19% rather than reduce to 18% and
subsequently 17%. Accordingly, the deferred tax provision at 30 Aprif 2020 has been calculated using a future tax rate of 19%, resulting in

a charge to the iIncome statement of £615,000.

9, Dividends

Restated
2020 2019
£'000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 April 2019 of 0.8 pence (2018 0 7 pence) per share 914 771
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2019 of 1.8 pence {2018: 1.7 pence) per share 2,271 1,878
3,185 2,649

Amounts proposed as distributions to equity holders

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 April 2020 of 0.9 pence (2019. 0.8 pence) per share 1,149 914
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2020 of 1.3 pence (2019: 1.8 pence) per share 2,426 2,271
3,575 3,185

The proposed final dividend is subject to appraoval by shareholders at the annual general meeting in September 2020. The interim dividend
for 2020 was not paid unuol 11 May 2020 and, accordingly, has not been included as a liability in these financial statements nor as a distribution

te equity shareholders
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10. Earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

Restated
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders o931 2,247
2020 2019
numhber numoer
000 000
Number of shares
Werghted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 125,652 112,548
Effect of:
Share options 1,477 404
Contingent shares as consideration for capital tfransactions 144 3,476
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 127,273 116,428
Resiaied
2020 2019
pence pence
Basic earnings per share 0.7 20
Diluted earnings per share 0.7 19
The calculation of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:
Res:ated
2020 019
£000 £000
Earnings
Profit for the year attributable to eguity holders 931 2,247
Amertisation of intangible assets arising on acguisitions 3,104 2,361
Transaction Costs 3,163 1,283
Tax effect of above items (590} (449
Impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax balances 615 —
Adjusted earnings 7,223 5,442
Restated
2020 2019
pence pence
Adjusted basic earnings per share 5.7 48
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 5.7 47
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated

financial statements continued

11. Intangible assets

Intangible
AS88LS
EMETS-RelY
Goodwill Software Fequs tans Toal
£000 £300 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 May 218 50,213 1,806 21,737 73,750
Arising on acquisitions — — 2673 2,673
Additions — 216 — 216
At 30 April 2018 50,213 2,022 24,404 76,635
Arising on acquisitions — — 3,257 3,257
Additions — 103 — 103
AL 30 Apiil 2020 50,213 2,125 27.661 79,999
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 May 2018 — 1,367 13,327 14,689
Amortisation durng the year — 197 2,361 2,558
At 30 April 2019 — 1,564 15,683 17,247
Amartisatcn during the year — 211 3,104 3,315
At 3U Aprd 2020 - 1,745 1,87 20,502
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2020 50,213 350 8,874 59,437
At 30 April 2019 50,213 458 8,721 59,352
At 30 April 2018 50,213 439 8,409 59,061

The carrying value of intangible assets arising on acquisitions comprises brands of £2,987,000 (2019, £2,852,000), customer relationships
of £4,835,000 (2019: £4,456,000), order boaoks of £866,000 {2019: £1,197,000) and websites of £186,000 (2018 £216,000). The remaining

useful economic lives of intangible assets arising on acquisition are between one and nine years.

Goodwill acquired in @ business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units ({CGUs") that are expected to benefit
from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated wholly 1o the insclvency CGU.

The group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indicaticns that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections over a 20 year peried, including the
latest one year forecast approved by the beard. A 20 year period has been used as the directors believe this is an appropriate period to

reflect insclvency numbers over an economic cycle.

The cne year forecast is prepared considering local partners’ expectations based on market knowledge, numbers of new engagements
and the pipeline of opportunities. The remaining years are based on anticipated insolvency numbers over an economic cycle, together

with historical financial performance.

. e oowd o eabog 2o aigulatis
The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those regardmg:

pre-tax discount rate;
+ revende; and

operating profit margins,

The group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital has been used to calculate a group pre-tax discount rate of 3.4% {2019 10.0%), which
reflects current market assessments of the ume value of money for the period under review and the risks specific to the group. As the insolvency
CGU comprises the majerity of the group's activities this has been used as the discount rate for the purpose of the value in use calculation
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11. Intangible assets cortinueo

T PP

Revenue assumptions in the gne year ferecast are derived from local partners’ expectations based on market knowledge, numbers

of new engagements and the pipeline of cpportunities. Future year revenue levels are basad on anticipated insoclvency numbers over an
economic cycle. This anticipates an increase in insolvency appointments during recession followed by subsequent decreases The average
number of insalvency appointments over the economic cycle is 1in ine with historical levels. Over the last economic cycle between
calendar years 2008 and 2019 insolvency numbers (source: The Insclvency Service quarterly statistics on the number of corporate

insolvencies in England and Wales) ranged betwean 14,500 per annum and 23,500 per annurm.

N L NI 0
Operating profit margins in the one year forecast are derived from local partners’ expectations based on the number of current
engagements and cost base. Margins over the extrapclation period range between 21% and 26%, which are based on past experiences

and expectations of future market developments.

v

s

I

LG

With regard to the assessment of value in use for the insolvency CGU, the directors believe that reasonably possible changes in any
of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying value of the unit to exceed 1ts recoverable amount.

12. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Cffice Mozor
improvements equiprrent Computers vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £€00

Cost
At t May 2018 4,101 1,506 3479 52 G,138
Arising on acquisitions — 29 4 — 33
Additions 355 37 392 — 784
At 30 April 2019 4,456 1,572 3,875 52 9,955
Arising on acguisitions 13 — 19 65 97
Additions 111 15 560 — 636
Disposals (219) (6} (263) (25) (513)
Reallocation 24 (24) — — —
AL 30 April 2020 4,385 1,557 4,191 92 10,225
Depreciation and impairment - B
AtT May 2018 3,397 1,336 2,889 4 7,626
Charge for the year 197 71 278 17 563
At 30 April 2012 3,594 1,407 3167 21 8189
Charge for the year 219 74 402 23 718
Disposals {203) {4 (267) {14 (482)
At 30 April 2020 3,610 1,477 3,308 30 8,425
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2020 775 80 883 62 1.800
At30 April 2019 ) 862 165 708 31 1,766
AL30 April 2018 704 170 590 48 1,512
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

13. Right of use assets

Wotor Office
Property veh rles £quinment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
AT T May 2018 9,762 1,680 597 12,039
Arising on acquisitions 798 — — 798
Additions 1,293 561 — 1,854
AL30 April 2019 11,853 2,24 587 14,691
AfISING ON acgquisitions 481 - — 481
Additions 235 602 577 1.414
Disposals — — (597) (597)
At 30 April 2020 12,569 2,843 577 15,289
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 May 2018 3,709 876 244 4,829
Charga for the year 1,358 582 154 2.094
Impairment 368 — — 369
AL 30 April 2019 5,436 1,458 398 7,292
Charge for the year 1,373 556 208 2137
Disposals — — (461} (461)
At 30 April 2020 6,809 2,014 145 8,968
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2020 5,760 829 432 7.021
AL 30 April 2019 6,417 783 199 7,399
AL 3G April 2018 6,053 804 353 7.210

The imparrment charge recognised In the prior year was in respect of an onerous property lease, to reduce the carrying value of the asset to nil.

14. Trade and other receivables

2020 2019
£000 £000
Non-current
Deemed remuneration 4,586 3,220
Current
Trade receivables 6,879 7,823
Less: impairment provision {1,392} {1.338)
Trade recevables - net 5,487 6,485
Unbilled income 24,492 21,310
Other debtors and prepayments 1,987 2,058
Deemed remuneration 4,494 2,479
32,332

26,460

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their far value.

Trade recaivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms. Refer to note 20 for disclosures on credit risk
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14. Trade and other receivables continued

The impairment provision comprises a specific loss allowance provision of £1,039,000 (2018, £527,000) and an expected credit loss
provision of £353,000 (2019: £411,000}. The expected loss provision for trade receivables s calculated on the gross carrying amount
of trade receivables less any specific loss aliowance, and is detalled as follows:

Nays past doa

Te30 days <60 days <90 days <180 days >180 days Total
30 Aprit 2020 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expected loss rate 1% 1% 3% 9% 42% 6%
Gross amount less specific loss provision 2,858 1,030 604 709 589 5,840
Frpedted credit 1nss provision 12 16 21 61 243 353

Days pas: due

<30 days <@k days <90 zays <180 days 180 days Total
30 April 2019 £009 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Expected loss rate 1% 2% 4% 10% 31% 6%
Gross amaunt less specific loss provision 3,841 1,109 444 686 816 6.896
Expected credit loss provision 39 26 19 72 255 41
ESEE 8§ TR & A TAPDRE 164 § T3 ol S A

2020 2009

£000 £000
Balance at beginning of the year 1,338 1,082
Adopuan of IFRS 9 using the retrospective application method — 353
AMounts arising on acquisition 2 20
Amounts written off during the year (208) (204)
Amounts recovered during the year (44) (195)
Impairment charge in the year 304 276
Balance at end of the year 1,392 1,338
15. Trade and other payables

Restated

2020 2079

£009 £000
Current
Trade payables 1,176 953
Accruals 7,055 6,372
Other taxes and social secunty 3,687 3,308
Deferred income 4,168 3,338
QOther creditors 5,853 4,980
Deferred consideration 150 772
Deemed remuneraton liabilities 134 2,325

22,223 22,048
Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms agreed with suppliers.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value.

In addition to the deemed remuneration liahilities recognised above of £0.3 million, there ara further anticipated obligations based on current
forecasts of £70 million as a result of acquisitons where the service obhgations of the selling shareholders have not yet been performed.
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Notes to the consolidated
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16. Lease liabilities

wotor Office
Property vehicles equioment fotal
£000 £000 £290 £000

Cost
AT 1 May 2018 7,040 827 365 B,226
Finance charge 420 23 12 460
Additions - new leases 1,216 561 — 1,777
Arising on acguisitions 739 — — 735
Lease payments (1,830} 612) (166) {2,608}
AL 30 April 2019 7,585 798 2711 8,594
Finance charge 41 27 16 454
Additions - new leases 236 601 577 1414
ArsIng on acquisitions 427 — — 427
Lease payments (1,570 (584) (234} {2,388}
Disposals — — (132 (132}
At 30 April 2020 7,089 842 438 8,369
Current labilities 1,605 437 190 2,232
Nen-current liabilities 5,484 405 248 6,137
At 30 April 2020 7.089 842 438 8,369
At the balance sheet date, the group had cutstanding commitments for short-term leases as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Aggregate undiscounted commitments for short-term leases 48 121
17. Borrowings

2020 2019

£000 £000
Non-current

10,000

Unsecured loans at amortised cost

10,000

The group's principal banking facilities at 30 Apnil 2020 comprise an unsecured, revolving credit facility (RCF) of £25 million and an
uncommitted acquisition facility of £5 milhon which were entered into an 1 November 2016. The principal features of these borrowings

are summarised as follows:

RCF of £25 million provided by HSBC, of which £10 million was drawn at 30 April 2020 (2019 £10 million). The effective interest rate

was 3.5%; together with

uncommitted acquisition facility of £5 million provided by HSBC, which was undrawn at 30 April 2020 {2019 undrawnj.

The group's banking facilities mature on 31 August 2023.

All borrowings and cash balances are denominated in sterling. The directors consider that the carrying amount of the group's borrowings

approximates (o their fair value.
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18. Provisions

Onerous

Dispasal Dilspidation contract
Crovisions ErovISIOns Provisions Total
£°000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 May 2015 as previously reported 260 611 480 1,351
Restatement {see nate 1 {t}} — 1,677 {480 1,187
At 1 May 2019 as restated 260 2,288 - 2,548
Interest expense — 60 — 60
Charged — - 366 366
Arsing on acquisition — 78 — 78
Utilised {(110) (124) — (234)
At 30 April 2020 150 2,302 366 2,818
Current liabilities 47 685 151 883
Non-current liabilities 103 1617 215 1,935
At 30 April 2020 150 2,302 366 2,818

Disposal provisions include liabilities arsing from warranty and onerous contract obligations relating to disconunued businesses

The non-current elements of the provisions are all expected to be utilised 1N the periods up to 30 April 2025

19. Deferred tax
The following are the deferred tax (liabilities) assets recogrised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior year:

Tax Snort-term

decuctible uming
goodwill Intangibles differences Total
£°000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 May 2018 as previously reparted (4,263) (1,509 348 (5,424}
Restaterment {see note 1 (1)} — — 452 452
At 1 May 2018 as restated {4,263) (1,509} 800 4,972)
{Charge) credit to income (27) 449 (211} 21
Arising on acquisitions — 475) 2 473)
Adaeption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 using the retrospective application method — — 338 338
AL 30 April 2019 {4,290 {1,535} 924 (4,896}
Credit (charge) to income —_ 610 (171} 439
Arsing on acquisitions — 1620) — £20)
Incame statement effect of change in tax rate (492) {142} 18 615}
At 30 April 2020 (4.782) (1.AR7) TIT (5.A97)
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

19. Deferred tax continued
Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (alter offset) for
financial reporting purposes

Restated

2020 2019

£000 £000

Deferred tax llabilities (6,597} {5,899)
Deferred tax assets 905 1.003

(5,692) (4,896)

20. Financial instruments

Fieo Koo PR L N 1

The group's principal financial nstruments comprise cash balances and bank loans. The main purpose of these finanaal instruments

is to raise finance for the group’s operations. The group also has various other financial iInstruments, such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which anse directly from its operations.

tis, and has been throughout the period under review, the group's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The marn risks arising from the group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and hquidity risk The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

REICEIN [SEEIEAEN
The group's external borrowings at the balance sheet date comprise loan facilities. All principal borrowings are on floating interest rates. The
group does not seek to fix interest rates on these borrowings as the board currently considers the exposure to interest rate risk acceptable,

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher and all other variables were held constant, the group's profit for the year ended
30 April 2020 and net assets at that date would decrease by £24,000(2019: £37,000). This1s attributable to the group’s exposure to
movements in interest rate on Its variable rate borrowings.

IS B

The nature of the group’s debtor balances, the time taken for payment by clients and the associated credit risk are dependent on the type
of engagement. :

On farmal insolvency appointments (which form the majority of the group's activities), invoices are generally raised having achieved
approval from creditors to draw fees. This is typically settled on a timely basis from case funds. The credit risk on these engagements
15 therefore considered to be extremely low

On other engagements, the timescale to receive payment from the date of invoice is typically longer as the group's standard 30 day
payment terms (referred to in note 14} are not practically enforceable in all situations. The board does not believe that this is an indication
of increased credit risk on these engagements.

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the group's exposure to bad debts is not significant
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are disclosed in note 14. The group does not believe It Is exposed to any material
concentrations of credit risk.

Unbilled revenue is recognised by the group only when all conditions for revenue recognition have been met in line with the group's
accounting policy in note 2 {j).
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20. Financial instruments cortnuad

Liguidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting 1ts obligations associated with its financial habilities. The group's
ability to generate cash from formal insolvency appointments is usually reliant on asset realisations A detenoration in realisations in the
shortterm could reduce the group's operating cash generation and increase its financing requirements. The group monitors its risks 1o
a shortage of funds through regular cash management and forecasting and ensuring suitable headroom within its banking facilities.

The group's objectiva is 1o maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of its committed bank facilities,
and giving consideration to other available sources of finance such as bank overdrafts, finance leases and hire purchase contracts.

There is no material risk associated with foreign currency transactions or overseas subsidiaries.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the group's finanuial liabilities at 30 April based on contractual payments:

Restated
At 30 Aprif 2020 AU30 April 2013

Within Between After Within Between After
1year 2-5 years S years Total 1year 2-5years S years Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Bank borrowings 265 10,618 — 10,883 275 10,905 — 11,180
Trade and other payables 22,223 -— — 22,223 22,048 — — 22,048
Lease liabilities 2,586 6,290 1,890 10,766 2,247 6,506 2,561 11,314

25,074 16,908 1,890 43,872 24,570 17,411 2,567 44,542

Sapnoal maragerr ant

The primary objective of the group’s capital management is 1o support its business and maximise shareholder value. The group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and business requirements. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the group may raise additional or pay down debt finance, adjust the dividend payment to sharchoiders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The table below presents quantitative data for the components the group manages as capital:

Restated
2020 7019
£000 £000
Shareholders' funds 65,571 58,056
Bank borrowings 10,000 10,000
At 30 April 75.571 68,056
wATeR eies s i e oo
The table below shows the classification of the group's financial instruments:
2020 2019
£000 £000
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 5,487 6,485
Cash at bank 7,247 4,009
12,734 10,494
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables (22,223) {22,048)
Bank borrowings (10,000) (10,000)
(32,223} (32,018)
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21. Share capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
thousand thousand £000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5 pence
AL 1 May 114,331 10127 5,719 5,508
Staff SIP scheme - 13 - 1
Issue of shares for share-based payments 79 834 4 43
Shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 1,460 1,485 73 74
Shares issued as deferred consideration 770 1,892 38 93
Placing shares 1ssued 11,041 — 552 —
At 30 April 127,701 114,351 6,386 5,719

Ashare placing of 11,041,440 new ordinary shares was completed on 26 July 2019,

Ordinary shares carry no right to fixed income and each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the company.

22. Share-based payments
The group cperated two equity-settled share-based payment arrangements in the year: a market value share option scheme for senior
management and an HMRC approved save as you earn {'SAYE") scheme for qualifying employees.

The group recognised an expense relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions of £102,000 (2019: £99,000), of which
£72,000 relates to the market value share option scheme and £30,000 relates to the SAYE scheme.

The group also operated a cash-settled share-based arrangement in the year. The group recognised an expense of £150,000 in relation
to the cash-settled share-based payment arrangement.

Details of movements in share cptions during the current and prior year are as follows:

2020 2019

Number Weighted humber weighted

of share average af sha-e average

options  exercise price optians exercise price

thousand pence thousand pence

Qutstanding at 1 May 5,184 54 5,137 43
Granted during the penod 1,500 88 1,134 59
Forfeited during the period - — (122) —
Exercised during the period (223) 45 (965) 10
Outstanding at 30 April 6,461 62 5184 54
Exercisable at 30 Apnil 1,577 39 1,800 40

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for cptions exercised in the year was 83 pence.
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22. Share-based payments contnued
The table below shows detalls in relation to options outstanding at the period end

2020 2019

Number Number
of share Contractual o’ share Cortractual
Exercise price options  life remaining options Iife rerraining
Sereme perce thousand years tousand jears
Share option scheme 2013 37 1,327 3.5 1,425 4.5
Share option scheme 2014 51 250 4.2 375 5.2
SAYE scheme 2018 59 1,134 2.0 1,134 3.0
Share option scheme 2017 63 2,150 7.5 2,150 85
Share option scheme 2018 68 100 8.0 100 3.0
Share option scheme 2019 88 9.5 - —

1,500

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the

following assumptions:

Share option Share option Share optior Share aptign SAYE Share option

scheme scneme scheme scheme scheme scneme

Grant date 2073 2014 201/ 2018 2018 2019
Share price at grant date {pence} 38 52 63 69 74 88
Exercise price (pence} 37 51 63 63 58 a8
Vesting period {years) 3 3 3 3 3 5
Time to expiry (years) 10 10 10 10 4 10
Expected volatlity (%) 23 25 17 17 17 29
Risk free rate (%) 0.8 0.8 05 05 0.5 04
Expected dividend yield (%) 6.2 6.2 36 35 34 35

4.4 54

Fair value per option (pence}

33

98

79

14.6

The expected volatility has been delerrmined based on historical volatility of the group's share price in line with the vesting period of the
option. The risk free rate s based on UK treasury issued bonds of a term consistent with the option life. The fair value is spread over the

vesting period of the options.

SIS it el

g dhe g oay

1,500,000 market value share options were granted on 8 November 2019. The exercise of the grants is subject to the following
performance conditions in the period from 1 May 2019 to 30 April 2024:

1. 5% require an increase in adjusted earnings per share of RPI plus 6%; and

2. 50% require total shareholder return to exceed that of a cormnparator group of AIM companies,
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23. Acquisitions

On 18 October 2019 the group acquired the entire issued share capial of Ernest Wilsons & Co Limited and of Ernest Wilson's (West Yorkshire)
Limited, which trade collectively as Ernest Wilson, a business transfer agent

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and labilities assumed are set out below:

Fair value
Book value adjJsiments Far value
E000 £000 £000
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 1,108 1.108
Property, plant and equipment 97 — 97
Right of use assets — 487 481
Trade and other receivables 99 m 98
Cash and cash equivalents 1,477 — 1,477
Trade and other payables (298} — (298)
Provisions — {78) {78)
Lease liabilities — 427, {427)
Corporation tax {179) — (179)
Deferred tax — (2113 (211)
Total identifiable assets 1196 872 2,068
Satisfied by:
Consideration under IFRS 3 —
Gain on acquisition h 2,063
Cansideration accounted for as deemed remuneration
Cash consideration 3,000
Equity instruments (1,163,874 new ordinary shares) 1.000
Completion accounts payment 300
Final payment due following completion accounts adjustments 114
Cantingent consideration subject to finandal perfarmance in three year post-acguisition period 1,630
6,644
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 3,000
Completion accounts payment 900
Less. cash and cash eguivalents acquired (1,477)
2,423

Fair value adjustments of £1,108,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Details of intangible
assets recorded can be found In note 11.

As detailed above the consideration payable for this acquisition requires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the
selling sharehclders over a five year period. These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration (sea note 2(c)).

Acqguisition costs of £119,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive inccme as a transaction cost.

The acquisition contributed £825,000 of revenue and £80,000 to the group's operating profit (before amortisation and transaction costs)
for the pericd between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.
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23. Acquisitions continued

On 24 October 2019 the group acquired the entire issued share capital of Alexander Lawson Jacobs Limited, an insolvency practice based

in London.

The amounts recagnised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are set out below:

Fairvalue
Bookvaiue ad ustments Farr salue
L000 £:000 £0D0
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 2,057 2,057
Property, plant and equipment 23 (23) —_
Trade and other receivables 60 835 495
Cash and cash equivalents 1,194 — 1,194
Trade and other payables (83 {776) {859)
Corporation tax 20 — 21)
Deferred tax — (391 (391}
Total identifiable assets 1,178 1,697 2,875
Satisfied by:
Consideration under IFRS 3:
Cash consideration 1,400
Equity instruments (296,195 new ordinary shares) 250
Coempletion accounts payment 1,000
Final payment due following completion accounts adjustments 150
2,800
Gain on acquisition 75
Consideration accounted for as deemed remuneration
Cash consideration 700
Contingent consideration subject to financial performance in five year post-acquisiton period 4,000
4,700
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 2,100
Completion accounts payment 1,000
Less' cash and cash equivalents acquired {1,194)
1,906

Fair value adjustments of £2,057,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Details of intangible

assets recorded can be found in note 11,

As detailed above, elements of the consideration payable for this acquisition requires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed

by the selling shareholders over a five year period. These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration (see note 2{c)).

Acquisition costs of £313,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost.

The acquisition contributed £2,100,000 of revenue and £967,000 to the group's cperating profit (before amortisation and transaction

costs) for the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.
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23. Acquisitions continued

On 23 September 2019 the group acquired the entire issued share capital of Regeneratus Consulting 1 Limited, an Exeter-based advisory practice.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are set aut below:

Fairvalue
ook value adjustments Fair value
000 £000 £000
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 92 92
Trade and other receivables 8 — 8
Cash and cash equivalents 689 — 689
Trade and other payables {7 — (7}
Corporation tax (120) — {120}
Deferred tax — {18) (18)
Total identifiable assets 570 74 644
Satisfied by:
Consideration under IFRS 3:
Cornpletion accounts payment 570
Gain on acquisition 74
Consideration accounted for as deemed remuneration
Cash consideration 500
Contingent consideration subject to financial performance in four year post-acguisition period 1,100
1,600
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 500
Completion accounts payment 570
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired {689)

Fair value adjustments of £92,000 relating to the separate racognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Details of intangible
assets recorded can be found in note 1.

As detalled above, elements of the consideration payable for this acquisition requires pest-acguisition service obligations to be performed
by the selling shareholder over a five year period. These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration (see note 2(c)).

Acquisition costs of £40,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost.

The acquisition contributed £168,000 of revenue and £20,000 to the group’s operating profit (before amortisation and transaction costs)
for the pericd between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisitions had been completed on the first day of the financial year, the group revenues for the period would have been
£73.3 million and group profit before tax would have been £3.6 million.

The amounts recognised above are provisional estimates.

In relation to prior year acquisitions, a reduction of £0.7 million was made to current estimates of consideration accounted for as
deemed remuneration.
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24. Reconciliation to the cash flow statement

Restated
2020 2019
£000 £:000
Profit for the year EEY 2,247
Adjustments for:
Tax 1,953 1,102
Finance costs 968 1,006
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,315 2,558
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 718 563
Depreciation of right of use assets 2,137 2,094
Impairment of right of use asset - 365
Gain on acquisition (2,217) (2,806)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 3 —
Share-based payment expense 102 99
Increase in deermed remuneration receivable (1,782) {1,733)
{Decrease} increase in deemed remuneration kabilities {2,191) 1,896
Operaling cash flows before movements in warking capital 3,965 7395
Increase in recevables (excluding deemed remuneration} (1,177) (714)
Increase in payables (excluding deemed remuneration liabilities) 1,813 1.773
Increase (decrease) In provisions 133 (438)
Cash generated by operations 8,016

4,734

Cash and cash equivalents {which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank and
other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less.

25. Reconciliation of movement in net debt

Cashand cash

Non-current

equivalents borrowings Net debrt

£000 £000 £'000

At 1 May 2019 4,009 (10,000 {5,591}
Cash flows (122) — (122}
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (note 23) 3,360 — 3,360
At 30 April 2020 7,247 {10,000} {2.753)
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26. Contingent liabilities
The group had no material contingent liabilities at 30 Aprit 2020 or 30 April 2015,

27. Pensions
The group operates defined contribution pension schemes for all qualifying employees.

The total cost charged to income of £2,191,000 (2019: £1,400,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the group.
As at 30 April 2020, contributions of £202,000{2019: £149,000) in respect of the current year, which were not yet due for payment,
had not been pard over to the schemes,

28. Related party transactions
Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consalidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

During the year the following transactions, all of which were on arm's length terms and i the ardinary course of business, occurred
inwhich directors have an interest:

A cornmercial property used by members of the group during the year is part owned by Mark Fry. Rent and service charges paid on this
property by entities within the group In the year totalled £95,000 (2018 £95,000}. At 30 Apnil 2020 £nil (2019 £nil) was payable in respect
of this transaction. Mark Fry also part owns a company which provides archiving facilities to entities within the group. £24,000 (2019 £24,000)
was paid by entities within the group for this service during the year At 30 April 2020 £6,000(20719: £6,000) was payable in respect of
this service.

Ric Traynor purchased the controlling interest in Red Flag Alert LLP ('Red Flag’) from the group on 10 April 2012, with the group retaning

a minority interest in the partnership. The group continues to provide a numper of central support services to Red Flag for which £96,000
was payable by Red Flag during the year (2019: £396,000}. The group has negotiated an agreement to retain full access to the database and
joint marketing rights for the publication of Red Flag Alert quarterly statistics and was charged a fee of £150,000 for the year (2019 £150,000).
AL 30 April 2020 £80,000 (2019: £141,000) was cwed by Red Flag Alert LLP

Two commercial properties used by members of the group during the prior year were owned or part owned by Ric Traynor or his personal
pension fund. Rent and service charges paid on those properties by entities within the group in the year totalled £nil (2019: £13,458),
AT 30 Aprit 2020 £nil {2019: £nil) was payable in respact of these transactions.

W frayes o 0 0 P
There was a put and call option in place for the group to acquire Mark Fry's interest In Begbies Traynor {(London) LLP during a three

maonth period after 30 September 2019, for £4 million {determined as an agreed multiple of average profit over the three year period
ended 30 April 2019). The option was settled during the year.

The liability to the group under this option is accounted for in accordance with the group’s policy for business combinaticns (note 2c) and
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost as disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.
The charge in the current financial year was £0.9 million (2019 £1.1 million) with an asset of £0.9 million recognised at 30 April 2020 within
current deemed remuneration.

T TERIMIe: [ RS-
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the group, is set out in the directors' remuneration report
on page 27

29. Reserves
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within owners' eguity’
Share premium Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

Merger reserve Formation of the group in 2004, and premium for shares 1ssued on acguisitions in accordance with
Companies Act requirements.

Capital redemption reserve  Repurchase of own share capital.

Retained earnings Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Company balance sheet

S

Restated
2020 2009
Notes £'000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 8 —
Investment in subssdiaries 5 37,932 36,682
37,940 36,682
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 6 40,494 32,033
Creditars: amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables 7 {67} (49)
Net current assets 40,427 31,984
Total assets less current liabilities 78,367 68,666
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Trade and other payables 7 (500} {500}
Net assets 77,867 68,166
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 8 6,386 5719
Share premium account 29,459 22,1593
Merger reserve 23,927 22189
Capital redemption reserve 304 304
Profit and loss account 17,791 17,761
Shareholders’ funds 68,166

77,867

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has elected not to presentits own profit and loss account
for the year. Begbies Traynor Group plc reported a profit for the financial year ended 30 April 2020 of £3,117,000 (2019: £3,110,000).

The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plc, registered number 5120043, were approved by the board of directors and

authorised for issue on 20 July 2020. They were signed on its behalf by,

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor

Executive chairman Group finance director
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Company statement of changes in equity

Capital
Share Share Merger rederotion Retaimed Total
capizal arerium reserve reserye 2arnings aguity
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
ALT May 2018 5,508 22,789 20,248 304 16,356 65,205
Restatement (see note 1) — (603) — — 603 —
At 1 May 2018 as restated 5,508 22186 20,248 304 16,959 65,205
Profit for the year — — — — 3,110 3,110
Omdends — — — — (2.649) (2,649)
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 38 33
Shares issued as consideration for
acquisitions 74 — 834 — — 908
Shares issued as deferred consideration 93 — 1107 — — 1,200
SIP shares issued 1 7 — - — 8
Shares issued for share-based payments 43 — - — 303 346
At 30 April 2019 5719 22,193 22,189 304 17,761 68,166
Profit for the year — — - — 3,117 37
Dividends — — — — (3,185) {3,185)
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 102 102
Shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 73 — 1177 — — 1,250
Shares 1ssued as deferred consideration 38 — 561 — — 599
Placing shares 1ssued 552 7,266 — — — 7,818
Shares issued for share-based payments 4 — — — 4 —
At 30 April 2020 6,386 29,459 23,927 304 17,791 77,867
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Notes to the company financial statements
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1. Significant accounting policies

The separate financial statements of the company have been prepared under the historical cost canvention and in accerdance with
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards.

The principal accounting policies are summansed below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year.

Fixed asset Investments in subsidianies are shown at cost less provision for impairment. The carrying value of fixed asset investments are
reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable,
The fair value of services recewved in exchange for the grant of options is recognised as an expense over the vesting pericd in accordance

with FRS 102, Cptions are valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Further details are provided in note 22 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Where shares are issued 10 employees of subsidiaries, this is treated as part of the cost of investment in that subsidiary.

PSRRI B VE L e g Y t Al el .

In the pracess of applying the company's accounting palicies, the company is required to make certain estimates, judgements and assumptions
that it believes are reasonable based ugon the information avallable. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods presented.

On an ongoing basis, the company evaluates its estimates using historical experience, consultation with experts and other methods
considered reasonable inthe particular circumstances. Actual results may differ from the estimates, the effect of which is recognised
inthe period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known.

The directars do not consider there Lo be any critical accounting judgements or key sources of uncertainty.

T e REIDT. o
Beghbies Traynor Group plc meets the detinition of a qualifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore taken advantage of the disclosure
exemptions available to it in respect of its separate financial statements Exemptions have been taken in these separate company financial
statements in relation to share-based payments, presentation of a cash flow statement and remuneration of key management personnel.

The company's shareholders have been notified in writing about the intention to take advantage of the disclosure exemptions and
no objections have been received.

The company also intends to take advantage of these exemptions in the financial statements to be issued in the following year. Objections
may be served on the company by its shareholders.

: SIS I
The company has reclassified the premium on shares issued in relation to employee share schemes from share premium 1o retained earnings.
AL 1 May 2018 and 30 April 2019 the adjustments between share premium and retained earnings were £603,000 and £997,000 respectively.

i

2. Statement of compliance
The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plc have been prepared under the historical cost convention and In accerdance with
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, and the Companies Act 2006

The functional currency of the group 15 considered to be pounds sterling because this is the currency of the primary economic
environment inwhich the company aperates.

3. Profit for the year
The auditcor's remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements,

4. Staff costs
The company has six employees (2019: five employees).

2020 019
£'000 £000

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Salaries 619 569
Social security costs 20 73
Pension costs 21 19
730 661
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Notes to the company financial statements

continued

5. Investment in subsidiaries

000
Cost and net book value
AT May 218 35,737
Additions 945
AL 30 April 2019 36,682
Additions 1,250
37,932

Details of subsidiary antities are set out below. These undertakings are included in the consolidated group financial staternents and are

100% controlled. Companies are listed under their registered office.

Subsidiary undetaking

Nature of busiress

Country of incorparat.on

340 Deansgate, Manchester M3 4LY
Begbles Traynocr Limited!

BTG Consuiting Limited?

Beghies Traynor International Limited?
Begbies Traynor (Centraly LLP

Begbies Traynor {London) LLP
Begbies Traynor (SY} LLP

Springboard Corporate Finance LLP
BTG Corporate Finance LLP

BTG Advisory (Investigations) Limited
BTG Advisory LLP

BTG Global Adviscry Lirnited

BTG Corporate Solutions Limited

Alexander Lawson Jacobs Limited

Regeneratus Consulting 1 Limitec

K (North East) Limited

Bunion & Co Limited

JSDNSW Limited?

Insolvency Advice Limited?

Begbies Traynor Legal Services LLP

BTG Tax LLP

Toronto Square, Teronto Street, Leeds LS1 2H}

Holding company
Helding company
Helding company
Business recovery
Business recovery
Business recovery
Corporate finance
Corporate finance
Investigation agency
Financial consulting

International network

organisation
Business recovery
Business recovery
Financial consultng
Dormant

Dormant

Daormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Engiand and wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

Property consultancy England and Wales
Eddisons Commercial Limited Property consultancy England and Wales
Eddisons Commercial {Praperty Management) Limnited Property consultancy England and Wales
Eddisons Insurance Services Limited Insurance brokerage England and Wales
Eddisons Heldings Limited Helding company England and Wales
Ernest Wilsons & Co Limited Property consultancy England and Wales
Ernest Wilson's (West Yorkshire) Limited Property consultancy  England and Wales

Eddisons Commercial (Heldings) Limited?

MMXI Limited Property consultancy England and Wales
BSMH Limited Property consultancy England and Wales
BSMSR Limited Dormant England and Wales
The London Silver Vaults and Chancery Lane Safe Deposit Company Limited Management company  England and Wales
TBS&V Ltd Property consultancy England and Wales
Pugh & Company Limited Aucticneers England and Wales
CJM Asset Management Limited Property consultancy England and Wales
Taylors Business Surveyors and Valuers Limired Dormant England and Wales
Theauctionpeople.co Limited Dormant England and Wales
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5. Investment in subsidiaries cont nued

subsidiary undertaking Nature af business  Country of iIncorparanon

¢/o S&P Consulting 5.1, Urb. Calypso, C.C. Valdepinos,
1y 3 A 29649 Mijas Costa, Malaga, Spain
Fddisons Spain 5L Facillities management Spain

1 Interest s cartralled by subsidiary undertakicgs, except where ma-ked wrere shares are Fela directly by Begoes Trayror Group plo
All shareholdings relate to ordinary shares.

The directors of the company are of the opinion that the value of the investments in subsidiaries, as underpinned by their membership
benefits in the operating entities of the group, is nat less than the cost of those investments.

The following subsidiary undertakings have claimed exemption from audit under section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006,

Subsidiary undertakirg

BTG Consulting Limited

BTG Corporate Solutions Limited

BTG Corporate Finance LLP

BTG Advisory {Investigations} Limited

Springboard Corporate Finance LLP

Eddisons Commercial (Property Management) Limited
BSMH Limited

Ernest Wilson's {West Yorkshire} Limited

JSDNSW Limited

MMX! Limited

6. Trade and other receivables

2020 2019
£:000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 40,471 32,001
Cther debtors 23 32
40,494 32,033
7. Trade and other payables
2020 2019
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Other creditors 67 49
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Other creditors 500 500
The company has no financial instruments ather than those shown as financial habilities above, all of which are denominated in sterling.

The directors consider the fair values of the financial instruments approximate to their book values and that the main risk to the company
arising from financial instruments is interest rate risk, which is kept under review.
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8. Share capital
2020 2019 2020 2019

thousand rnousand £000 £1000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5 pence
AU T May 114,351 16,127 5,719 5,508
Staff SIP scheme — 13 — 1
Issue af shares for share-based payments 79 834 4 43
Shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 1,460 1,485 73 71
Shares issued as deferred consideration 770 1,892 38 93
Other share issues 11,041 — 552 —
At 30 April 127,701 114,351 6,386

Ordinary shares carry no right to fixed income and each share carries the right 1o one vote at general meetings of the company

The company has issued share options as set out In note 22 to the consclidated financiat statements.
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